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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITRBES

| am pleased to present the annual results of China
Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

2011 is an encouraging year. During 2011, the Group
had allocated more resources to the development and
operation of electronic payment tools and as a result had
brought a notable increase of turnover in 2011. The total
turnover of the Group recorded HK$343,766,000.

For continuing operations, it recorded a turnover of
HK$263,095,000 in 2011 (2010: Nil). The gross profit
margin of the Group recorded 32.35%.

For discontinuing operations, it recorded a turnover
of HK$80,671,000 in 2011 representing a decrease of
5.88%. Its gross profit margin recorded 7.51%.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
for the year of approximately HK$283,071,000,
comparing to a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$148,983,000 in 2010. Of the said profit,
HK$230,986,000 was attributable to the gain on fair value
change of contingent consideration payable as valued at
year end. It should be noted that this valuation will vary
from time to time depending on market conditions.

The increase in revenue during the reporting period
was mainly attributable to the commencement of the
operation of Country Praise Enterprises Limited (“CPE”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “CPE Group”) which
were acquired by the Company on 28 February 2011.
CPE Group is principally engaged in the development and
operation of electronic payment tools, including the issue
and acceptance of the prepaid cards, which enables
payment via internet and mobile phone network through
the new electronic payment method, thereby providing
a safe and convenient payment platform for electronic
business trading activities. CPE Group has started to
deliver remarkable contribution to the Company.

On 8 June 2011, the Company signed a reseller
agreement with Yinsheng E-Pay Co., Ltd (“Yinsheng”)
for the promotion and sale of Yinsheng Prepaid Card.
Yinsheng Prepaid Card is accredited and licensed by
China Unionpay Co., Ltd (“Unionpay”) and is issued by
China Yinsheng Finance (Holding) Limited (“Yinsheng
Finance”). The card is a standard Unionpay card and
bears the Unionpay logo. Yinsheng is the sole sale agent
of the Yinsheng Prepaid Card in the PRC. The Board
considers that the engagement constitutes a remarkable
development of the Group’s business and expects this
will result in a positive contribution in the near future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITRBES

On 19 August 2011, SYSCAN Holdings Limited (“SHL”),
a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Agreement with New Smart Version Limited (“New
Smart”), whereby, conditionally, SHL agreed to sell to
New Smart the 44.99% equity interest in Wuhan SYSCAN
Ltd (“WHS”) at a consideration of HK$38,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 5 September 2011.

On 8 September 2011, the Company signed a strategic
cooperation framework agreement with Shenzhen
Golden Information Limited (“Golden Information”) for
the development, distribution and sale of Prepaid Card
— Gold Exchangeable Gift Card (“Gold Gift Card”), and
for the provision of supplementary payment services
and other related financial services to Gold Gift Card.
The Board believes that such cooperation agreement
will further help developing the business of the Group
in respect of the issue of exchangeable gift cards and
thereby contribute profits to the Group.

On 21 October 2011, the Company entered into a Sale
and Purchase Agreement with New Smart Version Limited
(“New Smart”), whereby, New Smart would purchase the
entire issued share capital of SHL, at a total consideration
of HK$5,700,000. All conditions precedent under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement were fulfilled and the
transaction was completed on 28 December 2011.

Following the acquisition of the CPE Group and the
completion of its review and restructuring of the Group’s
operation arms, the Company has determined to place
future emphasis on the business of the CPE Group
which include: (i) the development and operation of
electronic payment tool; (ii) the trading of computers
and communication equipment; and (iii) the operation of
prepaid card business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITRBES

As one of the fastest growing businesses in China, the
penetration rate of the third party payment business
has been soaring since 2005, and the position of which
has been transformed from a simple capital settlement
platform to a diversified resources integration platform
which combines all parts of the entire industry chain with
the upstream and downstream sectors. The management
expects a stable growth momentum in this business for
the coming years, and a thorough vertical integration in
the industry, which covers payment for areas ranging
from internet browsing to tourism, education, daily life
services to utilities, etc. Also, through effective marketing
strategy, the Company will continuously looking for
future opportunities, such as co-operation and reseller
agreement, with other suitable entities to further explore
the excellent potential of the third party payment industry.
These businesses are comparatively more profitable and
can bring ample opportunities to the Group in the future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like
to take this opportunity to express our sincere thanks
to all staff for their efforts and dedication to the Group. |
would also like to express our greatest gratitude to our
shareholders, business partners and stakeholders for
their continuous reliance and support.

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

OVERVIEW

The Group consists of the Company, Country Praise
Enterprises Limited (“CPE”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “CPE Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in (i) the development and operation
of electronic payment tool; (ii) the trading of computers
and communication equipment; and (jii) the operations of
prepaid card business, including the issuance of various
prepaid cards, part of which have multiple functions, in
the PRC.

The total turnover of the Group recorded
HK$343,766,000.

For continuing operations, it recorded a turnover of
HK$263,095,000 in 2011 (2010: Nil). The gross profit
margin of the Group recorded 32.35% %.

For discontinuing operations, it recorded a turnover of
HK$80,671,000 in 2011 representing an decrease of
5.88%. Its gross profit margin recorded 7.51%.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
for the year of approximately HK$283,071,000,
comparing to a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$148,983,000 in 2010. Of the said profit,
HK$230,986,000 was attributable to the gain on fair value
change of contingent consideration payable as valued at
year end. It should be noted that this valuation will vary
from time to time depending on market conditions.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the period of the twelve months ended 31
December 2011, research and development expenses
of the Group decreased approximately 14.08%
compared to the same period in last year. All research
and development expenses were derived from the
discontinued operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

SALES AND MARKETING

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2011,
the Group adopted more-client-oriented promotional
strategies to promote the products, resulting a 77.27%
increase in sales and marketing expenses over the same
period last year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL

1.

On 22 November 2010, the Company entered into
the New Sale and Purchase Agreement with Mighty
Advantage Enterprises Ltd. (“MAE”) and Country
Praise Enterprises Ltd. (“CPE”) pursuant to which
the Company agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest in the CPE, at an initial consideration of
HK$150,000,000 (subject to adjustments), but in
any event subject to a maximum consideration
of HK$850,000,000. The consideration shall be
satisfied in a combination of cash, new shares of
the Company and Convertible Bonds.

All the conditions precedent under the New Sale
and Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled and
completion took place on 28 February 2011 (the
“Completion Date”).

On 21 January 2011, the Company entered into
the Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement
with MAE, pursuant to which the Company will
issue certain convertible bonds to MAE upon the
satisfaction of certain conditions as adjustment to
the consideration of the acquisition of the entire
interest of the CPE Group.

On 19 August 2011, SYSCAN Holdings Limited
(“SHL”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Agreement with New
Smart Version Limited (“New Smart”), whereby,
conditionally, SHL agreed to sell to New Smart the
44.99% equity interest in WHS at a consideration of
HK$38,000,000. The transaction was completed on
5 September 2011.

On 21 October 2011, the Company entered into
a Sale and Purchase Agreement with New Smart
Version Limited (“New Smart”), whereby, New Smart
would purchase the entire issued share capital of
SHL, at a total consideration of HK$5,700,000. All
conditions precedent under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement were fulfilled and the transaction was
completed on 28 December 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
As at 31 December 2011, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$157.74 million.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no bank
borrowings.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND PLEDGE OF

ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no capital
commitments or substantial pledges on its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2011, the total current assets
over the total current liabilities was 2.02 times (2010:
0.78 times). The ratio of all debts to total assets was 0
(2010: 0.13). As most sales are made in Renminbi, no
hedging arrangement is made to offset the exposures to
fluctuations in exchange rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC and its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal
exposure to foreign currency risks. The Group monitors
its foreign currency risks and will consider hedging
significant currency exposures should the need arises.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 7 trademarks
registered in China and Hong Kong, of which 3
trademarks have been approved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

MAJOR EVENTS

The Group finished the procedure of the change of
Company name and announced on the GEM website on
1 June 2011.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has approximately
241 employees. The Directors believe that good quality of
its employees is a company asset which affects growth
and improves profitability. Employees are remunerated
according to their performance and work experience. In
addition to basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff
benefits include performance bonus.

LITIGATION
As at 31 December 2011, the Group has no outstanding
litigation.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Upon the completion of acquisition of the CPE and its
subsidiaries on 28 February 2011, the Group becomes
more concentrate on the more profitable stream of
business as to the development and operation of
electronic payment tools, include the distribution and
acceptance of the prepaid card, make payment via
internet and mobile phone network in the newly electronic
payment process for provision of a safe and convenient
payment platform for the community of the widely
electronic business trading activities.

After the disposal of the loss making subsidiary SHL
on 28 December 2011, the Company becomes a pure
profitable entity.

Third party payment business is one of the most rapidly
development of emerging industries in the recent years
in the PRC. The management considers this is a very
profitable business channel and provides tremendous
opportunities available in the market of the foreseeable
future. In the future, the Group will focus on the CPE
Group and the principal business it currently engaged
and develop the third party payment business to ensure
considerable earning and prospects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance
Report in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2011.

The Company was in compliance with the code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules, save and except for Code Provision A.2.1
throughout the twelve months period ended 31 December
2011. Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separated. The Board considers that the vesting of the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in Mr.
Guan Guisen provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for more efficient and
effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies. The Board believes that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company, given that
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operations of the Board which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals who meet regularly to discuss
issues affecting the operations of the Company.

Below are the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Group. On 30 June 2005, pursuant to a resolution
in writing passed by the Directors, the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Group are as
follows:

- Code of ethics and securities transactions;

- Corporate governance practice manual;

- Term of reference for audit committee;

- Term of reference for board committee;

- Term of reference for remuneration committee; and
- Term of reference for nomination committee.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in securities of the Company. Upon the
Company'’s specific enquiry, each director had confirmed
that during the year ended 31 December 2011, they had
fully complied with the required standard of dealings and
there was no event of non-compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and
control of the Company. Its main roles are to provide
leadership and to approve strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder value. All directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
laws and regulations are followed. Any director may
request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

As at 31 December 2011, the Board comprised two
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical
details of the Directors were presented from pages 22 to
26 of this annual report.

The Board complies with the minimum requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors and one
of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
required under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any
direct or indirect material relationship with the Group. In
determining the independence of Directors, the Board
follows the requirements set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

EEg

BERET
AAENBREEREHHRESEAE -
HEIBBS DM ERKBORET S WF
EXARNFRFARREE - TRESEHEM
TR - WREBSTEMAEORBRN &
B EHOREUAR BFEAR[A QT RE
RERBFIZRITE ©

FEESYN2E K SHESHERES
# URESARNEESREEENE
SRER®  URERNSESSRFRAE
BREGIRRA - FMESHAIRNEER
MT - AEBEFHSEERUSREY
EXZR  BHBAARQARXM -

EEEARNMALDTMEERSRELR
E - BEMEREREMEBRSEE « Ei2
EHRAE  ANEZEREAREERALS
ITBRG (FRRSRMNEERE) - B
R ZEESEREMEAMBREES
E o

RZB——F+ZA=+—H EFEEK
BRE-ZHYITES - —BFATESERK
ZEBELFUTES - AHESZHEE
BIARFIRE22F26H 2 ©

ESEFEAIERLETRAUGERERD
ZEBUFHNTES2RESRTE - Hh—
ANEBAIER EHRAES06FREZE

ESNERBRBIAL  ESSHEA
HEEZE SRR B B E A
EXBAER -BREESCBIUREE &
%@Eﬁﬁﬂ%’ﬂit?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%5.091'%)5)?%2*%
}E o

TEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —T——FFR 13
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The Board has adopted good corporate governance EZECKNRFLEEEERRER
practices and procedures and taken appropriate steps WERMNEBEERFUEBRREFTERE
to provide effective communication with shareholders. # - EE88FRLVBTAEHEE -
Directors’ Board meeting is held at least 4 times regular 4 EEAEEEESAERER » WH
meetings a year. In addition, Directors have full access to ZESZRANBIHFERBIEEER -
information on the Group and independent professional

advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The Board held six board meetings in 2011. Attendance EZE8R_ZT——FHBITAREZE 2

of the directors were as follows: RESTHESETHZNOT :

Name of Directors Attendance
EEpA HE R
Executive Director

BITES

Mr. Guan Guisen (Appointed on 28 February 2011) 6/6
BERLE(E=E——F-A=-+NAEZME)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong (Appointed on 28 February 2011) 6/6
BAEEE(E=E——F A=+ N\AEZE)

Mr. Frank Cheung (Resigned on 28 February 2011) 0/0
Frank Cheungt £ (E=Z2——F A=+ N\ A&HE)

Mr. Cheung Wai (Retired on 28 April 2011) 1/1

REEE(E=ZE——FHAZ+/N\BEE)

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Li Yuezhong (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 4/5
ZAFEE(E=Z——FENA=+/\BEZEE)

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr. Fong Chi Wah 6/6
FEEFL

Mr. Wang Zhongmin (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 5/5
FTARRE(E=E——FHEAZTN\BEZET)

Mr. Gu Jiawang (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 5/5
ARREE(EZZE——FOA -+ N\AREME)

Mr. Wang Ruiping (Retired on 28 April 2011) 1/1
FHTPARE(E=E——FNA=+/N\BRME)

Professor He Zhiyi (Retired on 28 April 2011) 0/1

AERBR(E=F——FMHA=T \BEME)
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company are
engaged on a service contract of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years.

Besides, the procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in
the Company’s Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company. Any new director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Zhongmin and
Mr. Gu Jiawang shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board recommends
their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, sent
together with this annual report, contains detailed
information of the above two directors as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
June 2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the
responsibility of approving the remuneration policy for
all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee members include a majority of independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Guan Guisen

(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Frank Cheung

(Resigned on 28 February 2011)
Mr. Cheung Wai

(Resigned on 28 April 2011)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee (Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Gu Jiawang
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Wang Ruiping
(Resigned on 28 April 2011)
Professor He Zhiyi
(Resigned on 28 April 2011)

All Remuneration Committee members met at the end
of the year for the determination of the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of
the Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee
members also meet as and when required to consider
remuneration related matters. The works carried out by
the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration of
Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration;
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(b)

to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement
benefits and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors, senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on
30 June 2005. The Nomination Committee made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors and the senior management personnel
with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by
the Nomination Committee members. The Nomination
Committee members include all directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen

(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Frank Cheung

(Resigned on 28 February 2011)
Mr. Cheung Wai

(Resigned on 28 April 2011)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Gu Jiawang — Chairman of Nomination Committee
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Wang Ruiping
(Resigned on 28 April 2011)
Professor He Zhiyi
(Resigned on 28 April 2011)

All Nomination Committee members met at the end of the
year.

The works carried out by the Nomination Committee
members are set out below:

(@ toreview the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) and
to make recommendations to the Board after such
review;

(b) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, having regard to the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules; and

() to make recommendations to the Board on relevant

matters relating to the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors
who possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand financial statements.
The Committee is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi Wah, and the
other Audit Committee members are Mr. Li Yuezhong,
Mr. Wang Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang under its
terms of reference for audit committee passed under a
directors’ resolution dated 30 June 2005, is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
the external auditors, to review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements
and to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
requirements, to engage independent legal or other
advisers as it determines is necessary and to perform any
investigations. The Audit Committee members held four
meetings in 2011.
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Name of Directors Attendance
REHA H IR E
Non-executive Director Mr. Li Yuezhong (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 2/3

FMITES FRAPERE(EZZE——FHA=T/\BEZEE)
Independent non-executive Dr. Fong Chi Wah — Chairman of Audit Committee 4/4
Directors

BMIFHITES FEERL -FIESELE
Mr. Wang Zhongmin (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 3/3
FARKE(E=E——FHEA=+N\BEZME)
Mr. Gu Jiawang (Appointed on 28 April 2011) 3/3
ARREE(EZZT——FHOA=+/\BEEE)
Mr. Wang Ruiping (Resigned on 28 April 2011) 11
FEHPEE(E=E——FNA=+/\BEHE)
Professor He Zhiyi (Resigned on 28 April 2011) 0/1
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Financial Statements

The Audit Committee held the meetings to discuss the
Group on the quarterly results, interim results, preliminary
results announcement and Annual Report. The Audit
Committee reviews and discusses the management’s
reports and representations with a view to ensuring
that the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and other
legal requirements.

The Audit Committee in conjunction with the external
auditors of the Company has reviewed the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 and has provided advice and comments thereon.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the
external auditors. The Group engaged RSM Nelson
Wheeler Certified Public Accountants to provide
services in connection with the audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and other professional
services. Total remuneration for the year of 2011 was
approximately HK$1,800,000, of which HK$950,000
related to audit services and HK$850,000 related to non-
audit services.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company’s operations, is a process effected by the
Board and management team to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations in achieving the established corporate
objectives, safeguarding Company assets, providing
reliable financial reporting, and complying with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Board is responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal controls over
financial reporting and the effectiveness of disclosure
controls and procedures. Through the Audit Committee,
it regularly reviews the effectiveness of the system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information about the Company’s performance to
shareholders through the publication of quarterly reports
and annual report. In addition to dispatching circulars,
notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, which
is updated regularly. The annual general meeting provides
a useful forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for
which the Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The
Chairman, Directors and external auditors are available
to answer questions on the Company’s businesses
at the meeting. The Company values feedback from
shareholders on its effort to promote transparencies and
foster investor relationships.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREERGHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 48, joined the Company on 28
February 2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Guan obtained his bachelor degree from China
Central University of Finance and Economics ( 1 R Bt
& K B )in 1984 and a master degree from Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China ( f B A K iR 1T
iff 3% & #F) in 1987. Mr. Guan has over twenty years of
senior management experience in finance, property
development and investment in the PRC. Mr. Guan was
a deputy president of Hainan Technology and Industry
Group (& @ B I & E ) from 1990 to 1994, a deputy
president of Thihe Holdings Co., Ltd. (K & & R B R 2
|]) from 2001 to 2003 and a director of China Union Pay
Data Services Co., Ltd. (SREEZHEABR A 7)) from 2002 to
2005. From August 2008, Mr. Guan became the chairman
of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co.,
Ltd. (kR R HEEREZHAEB R A F) and a director
of China Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. (LS $R & B R A
7] ). From April 2010, Mr. Guan became the chairman of
Beijing Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. ( &
Red(dbR) REZBEBERADF). Mr. Guan owns the
entire equity interest in Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd. (A RRHFKEEBREZHAERAR),
an investment company, which in turns owned 10.18%
equity interest in China Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. (/&8RS
EMBRRA).
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREERGHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, aged 46, joined the Company on
28 February 2011. Dr. Lei acts as an executive Director
of the Company. He graduated from Hunan Binzhou
Normal Institute (SIFg#8MEME) in 1983 and obtained a
master degree from Tianjin Normal University (K32 &3
E) in 1991 and a doctoral degree from Graduate School
of People’s Bank of China (B A BT EER) in
1996. Dr. Lei has over 20 years of experience in banking
and electronic payment sectors. He worked as a deputy
section head, section head and deputy department head
of Bank of China, Hunan branch from 1991 to 1997. From
February 1997 to July 2001, Dr. Lei worked for the head
office of China Merchants Bank as an assistant general
manager of treasury planning department, research
department and an deputy general manager of individual
banking department. He joined China Unionpay Co.,
Ltd. (FEESREEIR DB R A F)) in August 2001 until March
2010 initially as its general manager of the strategic
development department and later as its assistant
president. In between his tenure with China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. (AR ELAR D B BR A F]), Dr. Lei was also an
executive director of Unionpay Merchant Services Co.,
Ltd. SREEPE B R B]), a director of China Unionpay
Data Services Co., Ltd. ($REEEIEHFR A 7)), China Pay
Co., Ltd. (L8R E FXZ{SEMR A F), China Union
Loyalty Co., Ltd. (E/8REEMBR A A), Guangzhou
Unionpay Network Payment Co., Ltd. (BRI 4R =+
HPR/AF]) as well as a director and president of Shanghai
Kayou Information Services Co., Ltd. (£~ XK &R
AR A]). In April 2010, Dr. Lei is the president of Beijing
Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (R &tiE (db
) REFZBHAABRAT]). He is also a committee member of
Shanghai Financial Arbitration Advising Committee (L&
SRPERZHESS).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Yuezhong, aged 42, is a director of CCB
International Asset Management Limited. He was
appointed as the executive director of UB China
Business Management Co., Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Co. Ltd. (a licensed bank in Hong Kong,
stock code: 0349) and was appointed as the assistant
General Manager of China Merchants China Investment
Management Co., Limited, which is a fund manager
of China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(a listed investment company of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 0133). He has comprehensive knowledge
in the investment and restructuring business including
the industries of financial services, energy, consumption
and energy-savings. He obtained a master’s degree in
finance from the Economics and Business School of
The University of Hong Kong in 2004. Mr. Li joined the
Company in April 2011.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREERGHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 49, is a Certified Practising
Accountant (Australia), a Chartered Financial Analyst,
a member of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants, Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Fong has over 22 years of
extensive experience in various sectors of the financial
industry, including direct investment, project and
structured finance, and capital markets with a focus on
the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was previously a
director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited
and held various management positions in ING Bank. Dr.
Fong was also an executive director of Grant Investment
International Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Fong is currently an executive director of
National Investments Fund Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Ruinian International Limited,
and both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Fong holds a bachelor’s degree in management
science (economics) from Lancaster University, United
Kingdom, a master’s degree in business administration
from Warwick University, United Kingdom, a master’
degree in investment management from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, a master’s
degree in practicing accounting from Monash University,
Australia and a doctorate in business administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 62, has a diploma in
industrial economic management from A B KXE &%
2z (The Correspondence School of Renmin University
of China*). Mr. Wang has over 40 years of experience in
the coal mdustry Mr. Wang worked as the deputy section
head of &k T #8175 E] (the Finance Department of
the Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1981 to 1988, the
section head of B E R IEZE A T ETFEIE (the Finance
Department in China National Coal Corporation®) from
1988 to 1993, the section head and the deputy head of
rI%nBEﬁ% 4& 7] (the Finance and Labor Department
of Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1993 to 1995, the
chairman and the general manager of H/E{55 EER
E1E/A 7] (China Coal Trust Co., Ltd.* from 1995 to 2002,
the chairman of FfEEHAREE AT (China Credit
Trust Co., Ltd.”) from 2002 to 2010 and the chairman
of EEESE®WAMAT (Harvest Fund Management
Co., Ltd.”) from 2003 to 2011. Mr. Wang is currently a
deputy chairman of FIE & & T ¥ < (China National
Coal Association®) after his retirement. He was the first
chairman of F Bt & (China Trustee Association*).
He was aIso appointed as the independent director of

EBRERRERMER AT (Shanghai Datun Energy
Resources Co., Limited*) (stock code: 600508). Mr. Wang
joined the Company in April 2011.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREERGHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Cont’d)

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 61, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media
industry. Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator,
person in charge of the editing section and the head
of the business development department of A K H#R
(People’s Daily*). He was also appomted as the chief
executive officer of HMEIZEEREZREBR A7 (China
Huawen Investment Holding Company Limited*) which
is held by AR B#R (People’s Daily*), the chairman of #
HETREB/REEAT (Zhongtai Trust and Investment
Co., Ltd.”), the chairman of EiE#&ER (£E) AREED
il (Shanghal New Huang Pu (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and the
chairman of J®II|FE &Kt BR A A (Shenzhen Stock
Times Newspaper Limited*). Mr. Gu graduated from the
Philosophy Department of Nanjing University. He also
obtained a postgraduate diploma after studying two years
at the Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C.
Mr. Gu joined the Company in April 2011.

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October
2011. Mr. Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu began his profession in the banking
sector of China from 1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had
served as deputy president, deputy Secretary of the
Party, and then became the president and the Party
Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. In
2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president and
deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in 2003. He was deputy director of the Economic
Commission, an alternate committee member of the
15th Central Committee of Communist Party of China
and a representative of the 16th National Congress of
Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu served as chairman
of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Liu
achieved extraordinary contribution to the development
of China Unionpay and China’s payment industry.

*
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREERGHN

CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert
in China, was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant
of the Company on 8 June 2011. He currently serves as
a counselor of the State Council People’s Republic of
China and a director and analyst of Research Institute
of Finance under Development Research Centre of the
State Council. Mr. Xia was ever a number of the Monetary
Policy Committee of the People’s Bank of China, served
as a vice director of the Institute of Finance of the
People’s Bank of China, a manager of trading department
of the CSRC, a general manager of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, a person-in-charge of Department of Policy
Research of the People’s Bank of China and a director of
Regulatory of Non-Banking Financial Organization of the
People’s Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin’s research primarily
covers macro-economic condition; currency policy;
financial regulatory and the development of the capital
market in China. Mr. Xia wrote or edited a lot of books
which are very influential to the capital markets.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 40, joined the Company in
March 2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Cao held a bachelor’s degree in Computer Science
from Shandong University in 1994. And he obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Peking
University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, & Fa
EERFERA T (Jinan Xiande Technology Limited), £
5 (R El) AR T (Fengyuanxin (China) Limited), 4t &
X (b ) EFRF M AR A 7 (Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing)
Information Technology Limited) and 1t 5 & & (dt 32)
E 7 & % A R A 3 (Beikong Easycode (Beijing) Electric
Commerce Ltd). And from September of 2010, Mr. Cao
acts as General Manager in Kanghui Financial (Beijing)
E-Commerce Co., Ltd.

Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 46, is the qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Fung holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (formerly known as SYSCAN Technology
Holdings Limited) (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its
shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM?”)
since 14 April 2000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 28 April 2011,
the name of the Company was changed from “SYSCAN
Technology Holdings Limited” to “China Innovationpay
Group Limited”. The change was formally approved by
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 6 May 2011.
On 7 June 2011, the Company’s shares started trading in
its new name.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the development
and operation of electronic payment tool; (ii) the design,
research, development, manufacturing and sale of optical
image capturing devices and related barcode reader
equipment; (iii) trading of computers and communication
equipment; and (iv) the operation of a prepaid card
business in the PRC including the issue of different kinds
of prepaid cards, some of which being multi-functional.
Details of the investments of the Group are set out in
Note 21 to the accompanying financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment result
by product category and turnover and segment assets by
geographical location for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in Note 7 and 9 respectively to the
accompanying financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 49.08% of the
Group’s total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 46.45% of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 19.06% of the Group’s total turnover
while the largest supplier accounted for approximately
26.86% of the Group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out on page 40 and 41 of this
annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any
dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 36 to the accompanying financial
statements.

RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 37 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Movements in retained profits and other reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 46 of this annual
report.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$493,744,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares during the year.

28 China Innovationpay Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011

ERERMER
BE-_ZE——F+-A=1t—HLEFE >
FREFIAREBEEEHERELN49.08% -

MAEE R KA HEREAEBEAREL
#)46.45% - EAEFIhAREBEHALEEE
#919.06% » M A HEREAMEAREEZ
FREEZE#26.86% °©

MEERRE  BEEE  RENBREA
TRAEMBESHAAEEAL THxZIKﬁEL
5% HRRRAEBRAREF RMHERH

BEERER -

EEREE
$Elai_q——¢+:H£+—E¢
FEMNEEFBENANFEREIORLIIEN

RERHEBAR-
EETEBRTEMRE

[N

R B IR AN 42 B 5 A A BE B B S Rk B
536 °

EERRE EF

FR - ARQ AR 1EE BB A BE M B HE 3R
ELERYA

AREEERE S A K A Atbf# R F AR B
BN ARFRFICENFERESEIK -

R-ZB——F+=-A=+—8 ' K 7L
HEAUDETFRRNFEE - A AQFE
BB #9493,744,00078 T 2 PR 17 /&= B BR AT LA
BRARZEXDIK °

BE  HEINEERS

TR ARALEEMNE L FIBERE
B HEREEAREEM LEHRS -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

EEEWREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation
to the issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 21 and 24 respectively to the
accompanying financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of the Group’s share option schemes are set out
in Note 38 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 43
to the accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 28 February 2011)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong
(Appointed on 28 February 2011)
Mr. Frank Cheung
(Resigned on 28 February 2011)
Mr. Cheung Wai
(Retired on 28 April 2011)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah
Mr. Wang Zhongmin
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Gu Jiawang
(Appointed on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Wang Ruiping
(Retired on 28 April 2011)
Professor He Zhiyi
(Retired on 28 April 2011)

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws of
the Company, Mr. Wang Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang
will retire from office by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 February 2011.

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, the executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 28 February 2011.

Mr. Li Yuezhong, the non-executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 28 April 2011.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive
directors, has entered the service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2009.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive
director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28
April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 April 2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being
proposed for reelection at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (i) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EENRONER
RZBE——F+ZA=+—H  EERK
AEREEMEE LB (EERFHR
ERBIEXVER) 210 - HEEIR M K&
FhR o EB()VRBERZRAERGIEXVE
FIRSDHBANE AR DB RER T2
RRB(EREREESRBERHNBBKE
NHWHIERIBBEFEZ2REZIRE)
(I)VRIBEEH R E RHFE352F R E AT
ANZAR T E M 2 RS SR A 5 (i) iR
BRI¥ER EmRAIZE5.46E5.67TIRBREE
BETESRGZ2RAEEANE AR QAR
R ERBABNT -

Long position in Shares RRGOZHR
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Name of Director/chief Number of issued share
executive officer Capacity Shares held capital
HARAT
B TE 2EITRA
THRABHE 55 FrisR 5 & B BRNEDHE
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) Interest in controlled corporation 698,750,000 17.62%

BERITE (AraE) ZEEEELR

Note: These Shares were held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Guan
Guisen.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, none of the Directors of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

et ZERVBBEERLELEZ2EERHERZ

Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited#&4& ©

BREFEEN  NRETTAR  ES
ERARTREEMAEEEZE(EERE
HREEGHIEXVER) 2 AR5 - HEE
B SERERT > BE)REESRBE
GBI EXVERE TR DS BHMNE AR AT R
BRFTeERRIAR (BREREZESRE
ERABEBGEXHEIERRATE 2EE
FMRA) 5 SH(i)REZFH K BPEKRHIZEI352
1538 TE B 50 N\ FZ AR ATl B 20 2 FE R A
2 Fi)RERIER EHmRAIZES.46 2
5.67TIRERBESETESFRG ZHEEA
SRV RBRFAZ2ERRAR °
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INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2011,
there was no other person (other than a director or chief
executive officer of the Company) who had any interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

RIB(GRZRPERG)DETHEN
BERETERR

BRTXAREEN R-E——F+_F1
=t—0  BARFAREBE(EFRHER
PI)EE336IREIF AV B T ATRC i - HEH
AL (A RRESHEBRITHAERM)
RARBN R RABE R hEREAE

32 Tz K O
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Long Positions in Shares of the Company RERBziFs
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Name of Director/chief Number of issued share
executive officer Capacity Shares held capital
(ER N
BEx xE 2 RITRA
THRABKHSE g5 ¥R 0 8B BRBE DL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) Interest in controlled corporation 698,750,000 17.62%

BERELE (ML) SELEER

Note: These Shares were held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Guan
Guisen.

Details of the interests of Mr. Guan Guisen is duplicated

in the section “Directors’ Interest in Shares” disclosed
above.

32 China Innovationpay Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011

Bat -

ZEROBBEEREEZ2EERERZ
Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited#%45 °

HEARALECEEFRCEERRN EXNE
SRR RS |—EIPHEE



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has three employee share option schemes,
namely Share Option Scheme A, Share Option Scheme
B and Share Option Scheme C. Share Option Scheme
A and Share Option Scheme B have been lapsed. Share
Option Scheme C (“"Scheme C”) is as below:

()

Summary of the terms of Scheme C

The purpose of Scheme C is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants hereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest.

Scheme C was adopted by the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 26 April 2002
pursuant to which options may be granted to
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares of
$0.01 each, subject to, when aggregated under
this scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The subscription price will be determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the
ordinary shares, (ii) the average of the closing price
of the ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the
five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and (iii) the closing price of ordinary shares
quoted on the GEM on the date of grant, which
must be a business day. An offer of an option shall
be deemed to have been granted and accepted
when a duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the option duly signed by the participant, together
with a remittance of HK$1 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within a period of 21 days from the date of offer.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any person who has contributed to, or can
contribute to the Group’s business value and/or
technology from product development, sales and
marketing, manufacturing to enhancing efficiency
of operation to take up options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company.

B S B ERT 2
ARRRBE=HEEBREE > 25H
BRESTEIA - BIRES 8IBNK B RAERT
2IC - IBRAETSAMBRESEBEE X
R o BRESTEIC([FHEICH BT -

)

T BICHIMR B E

FEICE B BA KB H BRI
SEERURBRRER RNEL
SEBERLERES AT - ARG
HASEREEREMRENEM
REAEEENADER -

ARPNAERZFBEZFE-FEOA=-+X
HETHRRBEARS LEMFTE
C' Bt XATIURTFSHEERE
fRRE > UREBESREECOI THE
B HERAZELSBERINLERE
AT 8 R AN D B A E b B IR R ST
ERENEARMAE  TEHEB
AAB)ERCBITRMOEEI0% °
APABEEGBEEEREE 8
FERAUTEENRSE @ ()&
BREE (©RBRERHBHATR
BAEXAEBRERERMBRNT
B HE  R(Gi)AFE BE (KA
BEFEH)EBREAIZERTIRAIU
ME MSEEZBLEBEMNER
FEWREXNBEBHORGEIAR  ERE
AATBBEHBRER21 B RUKEL
1BTRER  BRENSHRED
R R IER o

EET2ENBARENUEAEER
MY EE R A m B BRI
HER DS EREREGERET
EHER IR E BN ROHALE
MBRE - URBARRANERR -
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No participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all the options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant representing in aggregate over 1 per
cent. of the total number of shares in issue Scheme
C was refreshed at Annual General Meeting held on
28 April 2011.

Scheme C shall remain valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 26 April 2002,
after which period no further options will be granted
but the provisions of this scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects.

Details of the options under Scheme C during the
year ended 31 December 2011 were as follows:

(1)

HBEERBITEHCERRET
ERNmEERERECSTE
A8 N e RITRE RV R IR AE) M E B 1T
RAFRITHROHBE - BREZ
ZEREH (BEREZH) B
EM12fE A B S L BRE HTR
DHRE1% - AITBEZBALTERE
BRE -FEACR=-Z——FNWA
T NEERNBRBFREEH -

SEICHERREMPE-TZEZ
FUA=-+ - <BRFAHI0F &
% BMIArEE-—SISRIBRE K
A EEFERMEENGEXNE
HEEMREM -

REBEZ-Z2——%+-A=+—H
I EARESHEICHR H VS IR
BRI

At Granted  Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 201 the year the year the year 201
R=8--F ERiS/ RZ8--F
Rt B s i3 | -f-H FRRH &M ERfiE TZA=1-H
[[8 Share Option Scheme C
FREEC
QOther persons
HfiAL
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to HK$0.1883 750,000 - - - 750,000
13 May 2012
ZECERATMA FESFRIATMAZ 0.1883%7T
“E-ZERATEA
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to HK$0.06 1,714,583 - - - 1,714,583
12 August 2018
“EZNENATZR  ZEEAENAT=RE 0.06%7
“E-\ENAT=H
10 November 2009 10 November 2010 to HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - - - 38,750,000
9 November 2019
“ZEAET-BTE ZE-BET-BTAZ 0102637
“2-NET-ANA
Total share options
RREAY 41,214,583 - - - 41214583
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the standards of good practice concerning
the general management responsibilities of the Board
of Directors as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout year ended 31 December 2011.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group is set out on pages 157
and 158 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public Accountants
(“RSM?”) will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
RSM as the auditor of the Company.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011 have been audited by RSM.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN ZBEHREE

RSM Nelson Wheeler
MizEE (F8) S5TMEBKAm
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SYSCAN TECHNOLOGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Innovationpay Group Limited (formerly
known as SYSCAN Technology Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 156, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

(1)

()

38

Opening balances and comparative figures
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 (the “2010 Financial Statements”),
which form the basis for the comparative figures
presented in the current year’s consolidated
financial statements, was disclaimed because of the
significance of the possible effect of the limitations
on scope of our audit and the inability to obtain valid
audit evidence to determine the appropriateness
of not classifying certain transactions as related
party transactions, details of which are set out in
our audit report dated 28 March 2011. Accordingly,
we were unable to form an opinion as to whether
the 2010 Financial Statements gave a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and 1 January 2011 and of the
Group’s results and cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Disposal of SHL Group

As disclosed in note 39(d)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, on 28 December 2011 (the
“Date of Completion”), the Group completed
the disposal of SYSCAN Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “SHL
Group”), with a gain on disposal of HK$41,320,000
recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Due to the facts as set out in (1) above, up to the
date of this report, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could satisfy ourselves that the
carrying amounts in respect of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of SHL Group are free from
material misstatement as at 1 January 2011 and
the Date of Completion. Any adjustments found
to be necessary to these amounts would affect
the net assets of the Group as at 1 January 2011,
and the related disclosures in note 39(d)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, the movement in
the Group’s cash flows and the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matters as described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraphs, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011,
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicate that the Group’s existing
prepaid cards business operations in the People’s
Republic of China are not yet officially approved by
the People’s Bank of China in accordance with the
Administrative Method of Payment Services for Non-
Financial Institutions. We consider that the material
uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements and our opinion is not
qualified in this respect.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HARAR
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
2011 2010
—E——-F —=ZE-FF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
[iiEsd FEx FHET
(Restated)
(E351)
Continuing operations BESEER
Turnover —E 3] 7 263,095 -
Cost of sales SHERA (177,992) -
Gross profit EF 85,103 -
Other income HAUA 8 3,136 434
Selling expenses SHERX (8,469) -
Administrative expenses THRE (42,912) (12,720)
Other operating expenses Hpis e (43) (6,167)
Equity-settled share-based IRREEE R
payment A FRIE - (512)
Profit/(loss) from operations %R, (E5E) 36,815 (18,965)
Finance costs BE R A 10 (1,186) -
Share of losses of associates paR (el BN =) =] (100) -
Share of loss of a jointly Ak i i PR B2
controlled entity BENEE (1,117) -
Impairment loss on other Hith FEWCRAVRE
receivables i} - (51,029)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE BB A RN 2,727 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBATEE (315) -
Gain on revaluation of previous B AR HEES
held interest in jointly controlled BRI EER
entities & 39(b) 8,451 -
Gain on fair value change of BASZAREATEE
contingent consideration 2EWE
payable 33 230,986 -
Gain on bargain purchase on ERSHEBERE
business combination g 39(b) 3,423 -
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLADER, (B518) 279,684 (69,994)
Income tax expense Friskipx 11 (15,760) -
Profit/(loss) for the year from RTEERELCEER
continuing operations BF(E8) 12 263,924 (69,994)
Discontinued operation BARIEREEL
Profit/(loss) for the year from AEEERLLE
discontinued operation E%aF(BE) 16 14,926 (80,029)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFERRN,(FE) 278,850 (150,023)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BT ——

FH-A=t—HIFE

2011 2010
—B——-F C—ZE-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ht=E FHET FEx
(Restated)
(E7)
Attributable to: BAT A4 -
Owners of the Company ¥ N/NETE 2= DN
Profit/(loss) from continuing FE R HETE
operations wmFL(E5iR) 264,586 (69,994)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued ER IS
operation BRI (E1E) 18,485 (78,989)
Profit/(loss) for the year RATHEE A
attributable to owners of PEh & EF,
the Company (B#E) 15 283,071 (148,983)
Non-controlling interests e IR
Loss from continuing operations SHEREERERE (662) -
Loss from discontinued BRI TR
operation =} (3,559) (1,040)
Loss for the year attributable to R e FEAL
non-controlling interests FREER (4,221) (1,040)
278,850 (150,023)
HK cents HK cents
Bl B
(Restated)
(E3)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER(&HE) 17
From continuing and discontinued  RBEFELERDAKL
operations XK
- basic — &K 8.13 (6.32)
— diluted — g 6.06 N/ATEMA
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- basic —EK 7.60 (2.97)
— diluted — s 5.66 N/ATEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

2011 2010
=25 —Z-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit/(loss) for the year REFERRN,(FE) 278,850 (150,023)
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EWA :
Exchange differences on translating BEBIIEECELER

foreign operations 48,267 3,471
Exchange differences reclassified to profit HEMBARBEHRFEE

or loss on disposals of subsidiaries B ERERE (5,214) (326)
Exchange differences reclassified to BEHE —EME D B

profit or loss on deemed disposal of a BENREEERZ

subsidiary BEHEL - (714)
Other comprehensive income for the FREMEEEA

year, net of tax HBRBLE 43,053 2,431
Total comprehensive income for the FAZHWALEE

year 321,903 (147,592)
Total comprehensive income for the FAUTATESEZE

year attributable to: IR A4 5E -

Owners of the Company RNREER A 326,124 (146,552)

Non-controlling interests FEIE RS (4,221) (1,040)

321,903 (147,592)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2011

R-F——F+_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M e FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 18 6,137 10,384
Prepaid land lease payments FE L HERE 19 - 45,631
Construction in progress FEIR 20 - 57,160
Intangible assets BmILEE 22 4,386 -
Goodwill GRS 23 1,092,372 -
Investments in associates REENT2IRE 24 822 24,555
Fixed deposits EHFER 28 12,340 -
Deferred tax asset FEREEE 35 1,851 -
1,117,908 137,730
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 2,158 24,083
Trade receivables FEURBR =X 27 70,804 10,887
Prepayments, deposits and JERUE S e R HEM
other receivables FE YR 56,480 13,855
Due from an associate FEUR — RE B N BRI TR IE 24 2,914 599
Pledged bank deposits SIEMRITER 29 - 27,066
Bank and cash balances BITRIBEE A 29 157,744 82,030
290,100 158,520
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables SRR 30 18,146 12,580
Accruals and other payables FEST R ELfFE{S FRIE 116,216 113,718
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FE{t—REIME AR —F
of a subsidiary FEIERR IR R AR 31 - 37,659
Borrowings &K 32 - 38,444
Current tax liabilities R EaE 9,247 -
143,609 202,401
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (8E)FE 146,491 (43,881)
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERATHERE 1,264,399 93,849
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE &5 1,253 -
Contingent consideration payable FEAEARRAE &) 472,848 =
474,101 -
NET ASSETS EESE 790,298 93,849

HRAIF L N EBERAR ¢ T ——FER 43



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+=—A=+—H

2011 2010
—®——% -2
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

et FHET FHET
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital BRAK 36 39,646 26,409
Reserves & 37 750,799 24,428
Equity attributable to owners of NN RIEE AELER
the Company 790,445 50,837
Non-controlling interests FEIEpR RS (147) 43,012
TOTAL EQUITY LA 790,298 93,849

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2012 R-E-——F=A-+N\BRESEHE

Director Director
EE EE
MR. GUAN GUISEN DR. LEI CHUNXIONG
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B FEARIR AR

At 31 December 2011

R-F——F+_A=+—H

2011 2010
—=—— —=-—2F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M e FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BRERRZE 317 -
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZEE 21 1,018,088 -
1,018,405 -
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and AN e RHEMAE
other receivables U FR 6,517 529
Due from subsidiaries A NG E e 21 140,305 -
Bank and cash balances RITRIESEE 900 46,254
147,722 46,783
Current liabilities REEE
Due to subsidiaries FESH B A BFIE 21 795 -
Accruals and other payables FEST R H At R 7 IE 2,107 562
2,902 562
Net current asset REEETEE 144,820 46,221
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,163,225 46,221
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Contingent consideration payable EAEHARE 33 472,848 -
NET ASSETS BETE 690,377 46,221
Capital and reserves BEXRR#E
Share capital g 36 39,646 26,409
Reserves EE 37 650,731 19,812
TOTAL EQUITY FESHEEE 690,377 46,221

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2012 Rn=

Director

EE

MR. GUAN GUISEN

BERLE

SRlET

Director

EE

DR. LEI CHUNXIONG

——HFZA-t+NBRESEHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

eEmPER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTEBAERL
Convertible ~ Retained
Share Share- loans profits/ Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option equity (accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total  interests equity
TARER REEH/
R ROEEE  BARE  iERRE  ENEGE  BRERE  BEEE  (ZHER) 48 FeRER  RRAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TEn TR TERL TR TEn TR TR Tién
At1 January 2010 AZZ-FF-f-f 20,769 9,034 191,978 439 2,246 6,952 - (149,263) 82,150 2,061 84,211
Total comprehensive income ER2TU AL
forthe year - - - - 3471 - - (5003 (46552 (104 (147592
Share issued from placing - EEE AR/ TR
(note 36(a) (Ki&36(2) 4,090 63,395 - - - - - - 67,485 - 67,485
Share-based payments  HIRGREE - - - - - 4576 - - 4576 - 4576
Exercise of share options {7 E i1
(note 36(1)) (HiEE36(0)) 1,550 18,218 - - - (8,169) - - 11,59 - 11,599
Releaseuponlapseof  REMRE
share options KUEER - - - - - (201) - 01 - - -
Disposals of subsidiaries ~ HiEMEAT - - 692 - (326) - - 14,774 15,140 - 15,140
Capital contributions -BHBAFZ
flomanon-controling ~ —%FER
shareholder of a REEE
sbsidiary - - - - - - - - - 44456 44,456
Deem disposal of a BELE
subsidiay —BHEAT - - - - 714 - - 1643 Rl 139m
At 31 December R-E-2E
2010 +=h=1-A 26,409 90,647 192,665 439 4617 3,158 - (267,158) 50837 43012 93,849
At 1 January 2011 RZE--£-f-H 26,409 90,647 192,665 439 4617 3,158 - (267,158) 50,837 43012 93,849
Total comprehensive income £ 2FNAEE
for the year - - - - 43,053 - - 283,071 326,124 (a221) 321,908
Transferto statutory reserve EZ %k - - - 3,801 - - - (3801) - - -
Shareissued fromplacing  REZERTRA
(note 36(c)) (HizE36(c)) 6,250 175,69 - - - - - - 181,946 - 181,946
Issuance of convertiole ~ BTTERER
loans - - - - - - 66,922 - 66,922 - 66,922
Conversion of convertible ST HRER
loans 4,800 142,088 - - - - (66,922) - 79,966 - 79,966
Disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAT = - (192669) - - - - 192665 - (39,180 (39,180)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEMBAE 2,187 85,313 - - - - - - 87,500 1,625 89,125
Purchase of non-controlling B AR iER
iterests - - s - - - - Y I Y5
At31December20tt  H=EF--F
TZR=1-H 39,646 493,744 (2,850) 4,240 47,730 3,158 - 204,177 790,445 (147) 790,298
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEEERERRK
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
2011 2010
—E——F A
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt THERT FTExT
(Restated)
(E51)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBiANEF (B18)
Continuing operations %i;'%«é:é%ij% 279,684 (69,994)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER 14,926 (80,028)
Adjustments for: AT HIARE
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AT LA ERIE
payments 1,570 946
Finance costs A& AR 3,764 617
Share of loss of a jointly controlled DME—REREESIEE
entity 55| 1,117 -
Share of losses of associates DEEE D BEE 538 5,495
Interest income FEWA (1,695) (44)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME J’ﬁy}%& Ll
plant and equipment BiE (k) 2,628 (125)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE —REE N a2 W - (1,414)
Impairment loss on other receivable HiEWFEREER 679 85,164
(Gain)/loss on disposals of HEMB AT Z (W),
subsidiaries g (44,504) 14,031
Loss on deemed disposal of a BIELE—RBHREBARZ
subsidiary BB - 3,939
Gain on revaluation of previously held — E{f%AIALEREIEE
interest in jointly controlled entities PRy Al 6 (8,451) -
Gain on bargain purchase on business 754 GBI
combination (3,423) -
Gain on fair value change of EAHARAREB AL EED
contingent consideration payable = (230,986) -
Reversal of impairment on other B O E MW 2 RE
receivables - (2,885)
Derecognitions of financial liabilities RIMERGHEE (38) (8,443)
Equity-settled share-based payments  RELEER M X FFIE - 4,576
Depreciation TE 5,944 2,906
Operating profit/(loss) before working EEBEESBEF
capital changes meRA/ (58) 21,753 (45,259)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERY,/(3Ehm) 1,056 (21,019
Increase in trade receivables FEUR BRFRIE A0 (63,935) (3,132
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AAMIE  REREM
deposits and other receivables PR IR/ (32 n) 37,025 (114,771)
Increase in trade payables FE(SERFIE AN 1,249 4,461
Increase in other payables and HitEA IR K R
accruals R0 27,745 113,279
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%ITAIEJ N7 /)ILE*&‘{%

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

2011 2010
—B2——fF —E-FF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
(g FTHERT TET
(Restated)
(251)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) ®ReEmE/(FTA)RE
operations e 24,893 (66,441)
Interest received BIRAIE 1,695 7
Tax paid EFE (3,284) -
Interest paid BAFE (3,630) (617)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REERE(FTA)
operating activities HERETE 19,674 (67,051)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B8 A3 - B E K& E 18 (24,324) (7,188)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - MENREKE
plant and equipment SRR 1,808 -
Additions to construction in progress REEREIR (39,750) (53,509)
Additions to intangible assets REEFEE 22 (4,386) -
Additions to investments in associates  FBREL ATRE (246) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BB 1 ) 39(a),(b) (27,685) -
Purchase of non-controlling interests BAJERER 39(c) (4,233) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries  HEK B A TTERIE 39(d) 3,682 168
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BIELHE-BHBL T 39(e) - (480)
Decrease in held-to-maturity financial SE MK EERD
assets 5,928 -
Repayment from jointly controlled HEEFERER
entities 390 =
Increase in fixed deposits EH LN (12,340) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BIRFRTERRED
deposits €y 27,066 (27,066)
Advance (to)/from associates (48F),/ REHE AT
EE N (2,914) 410
Repayment from/(to) an associate KRB/ (8 T)—BHE
NGIEE 155 (24,400)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—EE=Aq)
Fri8sIE - 68,574
Net cash flows used in investing RETHMARSRE
activities T 76,849 (43,487)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREREREK
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
2011 2010
—2—-F —E2-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mz TET TR
(Restated)
(251)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in other loans Hin &R0 - 8,439
Proceeds from exercise of share options {7{EEREFTESIE - 11,645
Proceeds from placement BLEFEHE 181,946 67,485
New bank loans raised HERTER - 26,606
(Repayment to)/advance from a non- FEBMRGER), B
controlling shareholder (12,795) 37,471
Repayment of bank loans and other loan #R{TEH R EMERER (38,444) -
Net cash flows generated from financing RIEEEFIEREAE
activities FEE 130,707 151,646
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BR&RBRLZEYEM
EQUIVALENTS HE 73,532 41,108
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ =% 85/ & 548 2,182 3,168
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HZEER
AT 1 JANUARY HEZEY 82,030 37,754
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+t=ZB=+—-H2
AT 31 DECEMBER B4RELZEY 157,744 82,030
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND BeRALEENAIM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances BTRBESER 157,744 82,030
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

50

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Unit
2708, 27/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 21 to the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2011. HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING
TO LICENSE FOR PREPAID CARDS

OPERATION

R EBHXEEER AR (Beijing Gaohuitong
Commercial Management Co. Ltd.) (“Beijing
Gaohuitong”), a subsidiary of the Group has been
engaging in provision of prepaid cards and related
customer services operations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC?”). Such business
operations are regulated by Administrative Method
of Payment Services for Non-Financial Institution
(the “Administration Method”) promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”) and took
effect from 1 September 2010 with one year grace
period (the “Grace Period”) for compliance.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Beijing
Gaohuitong submitted its license application to the
PBOC and disclosed in the application documents
that Beijing Gaohuitong is beneficially owned by the
Company, which was incorporated in Bermuda. The
PBOC confirmed the acceptance of the application
of Beijing Gaohuitong on 29 August 2011 by issuing
(RIBITREARBNEN) (XBEAFE435)
(the “Acceptance Confirmation”). Although the
Administration Method stated that the business
scope, the qualification of offshore investor and
investment proportion in relation to foreign invested
applicant shall be determined by the PBOC
separately and are subject to the approval from
the State Council (B1#;Fz), the Company has been
advised by its PRC legal counsel that (i) Beijing
Gaohuitong has not been granted a Foreign-
invested Enterprise Approval Certificate (9MNg#%
BEEREESE) and has not been registered as
a Foreign Invested Enterprise (9P E ) in
Industrial & Commercial Administration Bureau (I
4 /3), therefore Beijing Gaohuitong should not be
classified as Foreign Invested Enterprise; and (ii)
the issuance of Acceptance Confirmation infers that
the PBOC has accepted the basic legal formality
of Beijing Gaohuitong’s application. The PBOC is
processing the application and has not made the
final decision on approval of Beijing Gaohuitong’s
application up to the date of these financial
statements.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3.

52

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING
TO LICENSE FOR PREPAID CARDS

OPERATION (Cont’d)

According to the Administrative Method, all prepaid
cards and related customer services should be
ceased after the Grace Period if the relevant license
cannot be obtained before the end of the Grace
Period. Beijing Gaohuitong has not obtained the
license before the end of the Grace Period (i.e. 1
September 2011) and continues to carry on prepaid
cards and related customer services. Based on the
facts that (i) after 1 September 2011, the PBOC
continues to request all license applicants to submit
business data and reports to it regularly; (ii) the
PBOC issued a document dated 20 February 2012
prescribed which that license applicants should
carry on business in original scale and can neither
expand the scale of operation nor implement further
business innovation; and (iii) Beijing Gaohuitong
has not received any government’s complaint,
interference or demand of penalty because of
carrying out prepaid cards and related customer
services, the Group’s PRC legal counsel advised
that Beijing Gaohuitong’s operations in original
scale and business scope after the end of the
Grace Period is legal until the PBOC announces its
final decision on the approval or non-approval of
the relevant license.

The Group’s development of prepaid cards and
related customer services would crucially depend
on the approval of the PBOC for the relevant
license. As set out in note 5(¢e) to the consolidated
financial statements, one of the key assumptions
that management had made when performing
impairment test of goodwill at end of reporting
period was that the Group will successfully obtain
the relevant license approval from the PBOC in near
future. Should the PBOC officially disapprove the
Group’s license application, the carrying amount
of goodwill related to prepaid cards and related
customer services would be subject to impairment
and the resulting impairment would be recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011

B

ET——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

£ —=

BEENFEBERERZE
RAHEE R 2= (%)

REEEIE  MABERBPERR
ELESEBER > AIFTEENGTF
FHBEFREEANRIRBAERE
IE - tFEEBRERILEREZ (A
—E-——FhAB—H)URESE
B WHEETERENFREERER
BRAE o B TIER()HEAREITRH
—E-—FNB—HENERME
HEEREXEEEBEREHRRSE
(IFEAARRITELBEHA-Z
——HF A+ Hz2XHXRIMER
REEAURERBEMEERK

¥%A5  UR(GINLERSEBAS
ABFRAREESFREREE PR
B2 EMRERF > THRESER -
AEBHPEEEEREAN 25
EBUREKREBEE LB ERE
HERECEKRBEIESE EZE
FEARBITEMEAEERBER
BB ZREBIRE °

REEREANFREETFR®E 2
BRIUARTEARBRITHHE®
RZHAE o UGS M IRRM
5e)fr# - EEBNMEHARET
RERARMEL 2 EEBRRZ—H
REFENIREADEFSTREAR
RITH BB IRAF ZHAE o fi P
BARBITENEBAEE 2R
B - BERAN S REER PR
e ZREESTRE  MERZ
FERSNGREIRRER o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of contingent consideration
payables which is carried at its fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the directors to exercise its judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to the
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances
and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Company’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services
are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont’d)

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary were
recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment),
the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed
of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The
method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets
as stated in the accounting policy (w) below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policies of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements by
the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

SRlET

B

4.

EoT——

(c)

BEXR

MXNEBEBERAR ¢ —E——FFR

FH-A=t—HIFE

SRR @)

AN

BE AR AN EEHEEE
AEE2EE BAPEIS

AEZEEBVBRREER
REFEFHRBSEGZE
B o E&E$EI% >
BEAZENE EZEHR
ISR A A Al T2 A] i
ZEBERRERHEE -

R—EBERT 2 REE
wHIERRE M RERIIER
BHIZ A AER - RUKEE
o BERNR 2RI EE
FEERWEBHRAFE
2 WEBRABLEAKXE
EhEE AT URNEE
&EﬁZﬂ”@ﬁiﬁﬂ%
BE FEFTAREZRA
B BfiBEAZHEEA
TRECRE S ARSHRE
HEEEHERKREETH
BRI o 2S5 B FE (L o] 3 Bl
EEREBAFTFEEHK
BRAZEMEZBERGESE
R ©

ST



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in the consolidated reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share
of the net assets of that associate plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity that is
subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over
the economic activity when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to
the activity require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control (the “venturers”).

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that
involves the establishment of a separate entity
in which each venturer has an interest.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is
initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the jointly controlled
entity’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

Joint venture (Cont’d)

The Group’s share of a jointly controlled
entity’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity. If the jointly
controlled entity subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly
controlled entity that results in a loss of joint
control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that jointly controlled entity and (ii) the
Group’s share of the net assets of that jointly
controlled entity plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that jointly controlled entity and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between
the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled
entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4.
(Cont’d)
(e)
(i)
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(i) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences

are recognised in the exchange
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(i) Translation on consolidation (Cont’d)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in combined
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives and annual rates are
as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of
lease and estimated
useful lives, being no
more than 20 years
after the date of
completion

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office 20%-33%
equipment
Machinery and 10%-20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and machinery
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

— An asset is created that can be identified
(such as software and new processes);

— It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits; and

—  The development cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years. Where
no internally generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(i)

@)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(k)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase
or sale of an investment is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the
case of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

(0

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the held-to-maturity
investments are impaired, and is
measured as the difference between
the investments’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition.Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss
when an increase in the investments’
recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject
to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the investments at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Investments other than held-to-maturity
investments are classified as either
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or available-for-sale
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(k)
(i)
(iii)

Investments (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are either investments
classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivative financial assets not
classified as trade and other receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss for equity investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
not subsequently reversed through profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently reversed and
recognised in profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

(i)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are
stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4.
(Cont’d)

(n)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

(iv)

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the
holder to convert the loans into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a
fixed conversion price are regarded
as compound instruments consist of
a liability and an equity component. At
the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt and the fair
value of embedded option for the holder
to convert the loans into equity of the
Company is estimated using valuation
technique.

The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using
the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and equity
components of the convertible loans
based on their relative carrying amounts
at the date of issue. The portion relating
to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

U

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenues from the sales of
manufactured or trading goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the
monetary value of consumptions made
by cardholder settled using the stored
value cards in the merchants’ stores.
Card transaction levies are recognised
as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges
consist of monthly maintenance fees
on expiry unused balances, new card
handling charges, net of discount or
waivers, and other customer services
charges. The monthly maintenance
fees are recognised when the fees are
deducted from the unused balances at
each month end. The new card handling
charges are recognised when a card
buyer purchases a new card. Other
customer services are recognised when
the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4.
(Cont’d)

(o)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(p)
(i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Consultancy income is recognised
when the service is rendered and on the
basis of stage of completion of each
individual project, provided that the
costs involved can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a transaction
is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.

Commission income is recognised when
the service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to
the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
when and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(i)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received. Government
grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business of geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
income statement, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011

B

4.

BT ——

(t)

BEXR

FH-A=t—HIFE

SRR &)

ERIEEERE

CRIEEEEBEHAEE—
B HEERRSRER
BAEEHEMEBEER
7 BR-EBEREBIWE
Eilbaped VA 3 R
AHE-BREBEIHES
DRZBIEBRRB2E—5
E5tE—H2 K —BE
HAEEMWEZHBAR -

fieh S 35 4 HH EE R Bk 2 AT AR
BEBIMBRE R EERT
BIREEHEZRE . B
DTEBERIEREXRK - B
BHEKE > BRAXBTLE
DERORILREET -

HERBIER/CRIEEE
X% AIERGEERARE
PIE—8E  EPES:

- CRLEREXEBZEK
BEBNHEIR R

- BEMEALEEX
W 4o A
Bl & A TER Y
£ 5 S B0 ) B
Rk -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other year and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

v)
B)

Related parties (Cont’d)

An entity is related to the Group
(reporting entity) if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

4. BEREFTTHER@®)

vy BEAL#E)
B HEEBWHRBEKRK
EEEBRE(REE

Bg) . m:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR

ZEREAXQNAHH
B-—KEzKER T
(BNE/AF - HELQ
8] ) [5) 2 Bff |8 1 B 1%
L EaEE)

ZERHHEMER(H
ZHMEBSME D
AzEEzRE 2B
ENAR[ERT)Z

BEARNARAT -

MEEEYAER—
=AZEERT -

Hbh—BHERAFE=
FREERA Mm%
—BRBAFE=-F 2

A o

ZERDAAEED
HASEERECE
BeEEBANMRY
ZEBEBERBAETE -
HMAKEXRSSEH
tE - AIREY B
FREREEREE

ZE X (A)FTE R A
TG RHEES

F(A) (i) Pirsdt Bl A + %
ZEBREERMEXS
EhFANTHRZER
(RZEBZFATF)
ZEEEEAB o

79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets except goodwill, inventories
and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(w)

(x)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior year. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of reporting period
or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed below.

@

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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5.

84

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont’d)

(d)  Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted
to the directors and employees determined
at the date of grant of the respective share
options is expensed over the vesting period,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group’s share-based payment reserve. In
assessing the fair value of the share options,
the Black-Scholes option pricing model
(the “Black-Scholes Model”) was used. The
Black-Scholes Model is one of the generally
accepted methodologies used to calculate
the fair value of the share options. The
Black-Scholes Model requires the input
of subjective assumptions, including the
expected dividend yield and expected life of
options. Any changes in these assumptions
can significantly affect the estimate of the fair
value of the share options.

(e) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
The Group currently has two cash-generating
units namely general trading operations, and
prepaid card and related operations. One of
the key assumptions that the management
made for prepaid card and related operations
is that the Group will successfully obtain the
relevant license under the Administrative
Method of Payment Services for Non-
Financial Institutions from the PBOC the
near future. The total carrying amount of
goodwill at the end of the reporting period
was HK$1,092,372,000 and no impairment
loss was recognised during 2011. Details of
the Group’s goodwill are set out in note 23 to
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2011, the Group entities had
no significant assets or liabilities denominated
in currency other than respective functional
currencies.

At 31 December 2010, if the US$ had
weakened 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$458,000 higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss on bank
borrowings denominated in US$.
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6.

86

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables and
amount due from an associate included in the
statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event that counterparties fail to
perform their obligations at 31 December
2011 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of
those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The largest trade receivables
represent approximately 21% (2010: 85%) of
total trade receivables. In order to minimise
credit risk, the directors have delegated
senior management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses
are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial
liabilities is as follows:
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(c)

FH-A=t—HIFE

IEEREE #)

MEE & Eb

REBZHRBEHEZR
ERAHRBDESER - B
REERRWIR S FHE LR
REHRRMRBESER -

AEB U BEEZRIYA
DHEWT

Less than
1 year
DPR—F
HK$’000
FHET
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——H+=H=+—H
Trade payables FE{FBR X 18,146
Accruals and other payables FESTE AR H AR FIE 116,216
At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZEF+=-A=+—H
Trade payables FE{FBRFR 12,580
Accruals and other payables FESTE AR H S FIE 107,146
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of  FE{f—RIMIE AT —BIEER
a subsidiary IR R FRIE 37,639
Borrowings BN 39,708
Interest rate risk (d) FIZRE
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk AEEEH 2 FMEERRE
arises from its bank deposits, fixed deposits HIRITFR - TEHERRIR

and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at fixed rate and
variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates at that
date had been 100 basis points lower with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$1,183,000 lower (2010: HK$9,000 lower),
arising mainly as a result of lower interest
income on bank. If interest rates had been 100
basis points higher, with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been HK$1,183,000
higher (2010: HK$9,000 higher), arising mainly
as a result of higher interest income on bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(e)

Categories of financial instruments at

BE-FT——F+-A=
6. BRERE
(e)

T—BIFE

H#E)

R—ZFE——F+=A

31 December 2011 =+—BZz&mIAEH
2011 2010
—2-—F Z—ZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Financial assets: MREE
Loans and receivables (including EXRNEWF(EIFERE
cash and cash equivalents) RBEEZSEY) 288,414 148,609
Financial liabilities: AR :
Financial liabilities of fair value BAFEFTAEBRZ
through profit or loss (Contingent Ei#& &
consideration payable) (A RE) 472,848 -
Financial liabilities measured at REER AT E 2
amortised cost 5 =i 131,952 202,401
604,800 202,401
() Fair values n 2AFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s AEBER UM R KR Z

financial assets and financial liabilities as MREERMBABKREER

reflected in the statement of financial position BEHHEER 2 AFEES -
approximate their respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value LU 4% 58 A BRI 8 0% 5t

measurements use a fair value hierarchy EQFE 2H={EZHRH

which has 3 levels: E:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active FAN : PERTSERE-NE
markets for identical assets or EREBEZREEBE
liabilities. (RESRE) o

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices M2 1 WMART EIEERG
included within Level 1 that are 1THNEETRNE
observable for the asset or liability, EBEZHEE (]
either directly (i.e. as prices) or B ) EE (ER
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). PTAE) REBE ©

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are MBI3 - RARERIBEEA
not based on observable market data RNMmEBIE2ERE
(unobservable inputs). HEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. HHEREE®)

(f)

Fair values (Cont’d) n -2FE#E)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at R-ZTF——F+ZA=+—
31 December 2011: BIEEBENAFESRFIE
Fair value measurement using: Total
EAQFEREE : &%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2011
&5l & Bl2 #/ABIZ —T——F

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHBT FHET FHET FHET

Contingent A RE
consideration
payable - - 472,848 472,848
Reconciliation of contingent consideration REEBIBAR FEFTE 2B
payable measured at fair value based on level RARBEZLHER
3:
2011
—E——fF
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2011 H—ZE——F—H—AH -
Issues BT 850,588
Settlements &1t (146,754)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss REBERER 2 BN (230,986)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-B=+—H 472,848
The total gains recognised in profit or loss REZBICANBZEER
including those liabilities held at the end LAWARETZHNREH
of reporting period are presented in the BEEREE s ZEaE -

consolidated income statement.
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7.

90

TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover which represents card

BE—_T——

7. HEEE

FH-A=t—HIFE

FEEBZERBEFRZEE - +

transaction levies, card handling and service FEERRKE FHAKRA B2
charges, consultancy income, commission income WAREEER :
and sales of goods are as follows:
2011 2010
—B——-F CE-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations REREER
Card transaction levies FREHE 2,511 -
Card handling and service charges +FFEERREE 6,719 —
Consultancy income L ON 8,646 -
Commission income from BN ERFDEZ
distribution of prepaid phone B’ A
cards 5,648 -
Sales of computer and HESKKBENRE
communication equipments 205,900 -
Sales of consumer goods via gift EREY R E TR
card marketing HEHBER 33,671 -
263,095 =
Discontinued operation (note 16) 2RISR (FiEE16)
Sales of optical image capturing HEXEXRERSETR
devices and related barcode RIS R ERR R A
reader equipments 80,671 85,711
343,766 85,711
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftulg A
2011 2010
—2-—F ZZ-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT
(Restated)
(&%)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE MENKREZ
plant and equipment U %= - 125
Reversal of impairment loss on BB H Ath FE W FORL (B B 18
other receivables - 2,885
Derecognition of financial liabilities — #& I-FEREERE 38 8,443
Interest income FE WA 1,695 44
Exchange gain, net B 5 W2 8E - 212
Government grant BT RL 304 51
System development and R R RAEAWA
consultancy income 4,150 -
Others Hib 385 348
6,572 12,108
Representing: & :
Continuing operations FIEREER 3,136 434
Discontinued operation (note 16) B IEREEK (FEE16) 3,436 11,674
6,572 12,108
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92

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four reportable segments as follows:
Discontinued operation

SYSCAN - manufacture and sale of optical
image capturing devices, chips and
other optoelectronic products in the

PRC

Continuing operations

Prepaid — provision of stored value card
cards payment services and related
customer services and consultancy
services in the PRC
Gift cards - marketing and sale of consumer
goods in form of prepaid gift cards
in the PRC
General — trading of mobile phones, computer,
trading communication equipment and

liquor

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies.

The Group’s other operating segments include
prepaid phone card distribution business and
software development business. None of these
segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds
for determining reportable segments. The
information of these other operating segments is
included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do
not include dividend income, and gains or losses
from investments and derivative instruments.
Segment assets do not include amounts due
from related parties, investments and derivative
instruments. Segment non-current assets do not
include financial instruments, deferred tax assets
and goodwill.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and

transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third
parties, i.e. at current market prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

Information about reportable segment profit or loss

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

9. ZEER M@

FRATERsBaNNBEEREE

and assets: ZERWMT :
Discontinued
operation Continuing operations
ERALEEXHR BEREEK
Prepaid Gift  General
cards cards trading Others Total
SYSCAN R+ B+ —-RES Httr B3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL TERT TERT FAx Tax TERL
Year ended Bz-2—-F
31 December 2011 +=A=1+-H
ILFE
Revenue from external ~ REHNBRF G
customers 80,671 16,228 33,671 205,900 7296 343,766
Intersegment revenue PERkE - - 6,616 - - 6,616
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (F8) 14,926 2,474 12,047 43,075 (149) 72,373
Interest revenue ANEWE 198 1,366 36 36 59 1,695
Interest expense TSR (2,578) (206) 4 (774) (12) (3,574)
Depreciation and HERESH
amortisation (5,611) (396) (7) (938) (516) (7,468)
Other material items of ~ H#EAEE
income and expense: WARFX
Share of losses of DMEEE AT
associates BB (438) - - - - (438)
Gain on disposal of HERBLTE
subsidiaries e 42,092 - - - - 42,092
Additions to segment REDEERD
non-current assets EE 60,598 745 170 6,131 453 68,097
As at 31 December 2011 R=—Z——F
+=A=+-H
Segment assets NEEE - 144,750 27,964 99,727 29,808 302,249

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
has one reportable segment which is manufacture
and sale of optical image capturing devices, chips

and other optoelectronic products in the PRC.

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

BE-FT——F+-A=+—AILFE

9. SDEEFR @)
2R/ M2 W  BRREER

profit or loss and assets: BEEHER:
2011
—E——F
HK$’000
FHT
Revenue Wz
Total revenue of reportable segments A2|o Bz N LEEE 350,382
Elimination of intersegment revenue AR 8 (6,616)
Elimination of discontinued operation T AR IE 5L 8 (80,671)
Consolidated revenue from continuing HEREER RSN
operations 263,095
Profit or loss A EE
Total profit or loss of reportable segments A E2MRpE 2 anM N BEEEE 72,373
Unallocated corporate income and expense, K oOBGEBRARRBEY @ i
net (21,818)
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities ~ FE(5HEEE4IEEEE (1,117)
Share of losses of associates FE(L R A EESE (100)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RINE AU 2,727
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB A TEE (315)
Gain on revaluation of previous held interest E{L &R AL EEHI B
in jointly controlled entities s BRSNS 8,451
Gain on fair value change of contingent FENSARE R FEEE S
consideration payable 230,986
Gain on bargain purchase on business (BEsEERBRE
combination 3,423
Elimination of discontinued operation O 4R L 2754 8 (14,926)
Profit before income tax BRB AT A 279,684
Income tax expense FrisFipx (15,760)
Consolidated profit for the year from FEREEBFERS RF
continuing operations 263,924
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments A2RABEEHRLE 302,249
Deferred tax asset EEBEERE 1,851
Investments in associates i AN = 822
Due from an associate PR — R B A R FRIE 2,914
Other corporate assets HihpEERE 7,800
Consolidated total assets HEBEMEE 1,408,008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-FT——F+-A=+—AILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. EERE)
Geographical information: EEHR
2011 2010
= i =
Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued Continuing
operation operations operation operations
ERIEKEXER HEQEER CRULIKEXK FELEER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FERT THET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E5)
Revenue Wz
The PRC FEl 28,256 263,095 13,347 -
USA £H 31,796 - 65,243 -
Others Hit 20,619 - 7,121 =
Consolidated total FeWmALE
revenue 80,671 263,095 85,711 -

In presenting the geographical information, revenue
is based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets are all located in

FRrEE

REIHEEERE  WRIERE

REE 2 ERBEEZFMUNFE -

the PRC.
Revenue from major customers: REEFEEFZWE :
2011 2010
—B——-F CE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FBx
(Restated)
(E51)
SYSCAN (discounted operation) SYSCAN(E & L& %#75%)
Customer a ZFa 31,796 65,243
General trading —RE
(continuing operations) (FELEEK)
Customer b =ZFpb 65,507 AiEFN/A
Customer ¢ =Fc 35,880 AiEFN/A

HRAF L NEBRERAR ¢ T ——FER 95



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLERAR
2011 2010
—B-——-F Z—ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 1,803 104
Interest on other loan HAiEFFIE
wholly repayable within five years RAEFERBHEER 1,827 513
Imputed interest on convertible loans TR EHEEF S 134 -
3,764 617
Representing: Rk
Continuing operations BT 1,186 -
Discontinued operation (note 16) BRI E T (FiFE16) 2,578 617
3,764 617
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. PSR xX
2011 2010
—E2-——-F —Z2-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(E71)
Current tax— Overseas BIEATH 1E — g o
Provision for the year FREE 12,462 1
Deferred tax (note 35) IEAER1E (MHEE35) 3,298 -
15,760 1
Representing: &k :
Continuing operations FHESE R 15,760 -
Discontinued operation (note 16) BRI ST (MYEE16) - 1
15,760 1
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required FA A& B 5F (I 8 = 4 B AR B0k

since the Group has no assessable profit for the
year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

11.

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 1. PS8z &)
The new PRC enterprise income tax law passed by FETEZEARRKRAER=-ZZ
the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March tE=ZA+ABBBZHPELE
2007 introduces various changes which include FrBBUESIAZIEZE) - B KA
the unification of the enterprise income tax rate for BRMNECECTEFTESHRBES
domestic and foreign enterprises at 25%. The new —725% ° 2R EFB=ZFEN
tax law becomes effective from 1 January 2008. F—A—HBER -
The reconciliation between the income tax expense FriS %68 2 B BR B A T 18 Fe LA P
and the product of loss before tax multiplied by the CEFREHBE2HROT ¢
PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:
() Continuing operations () FHELEEK
2011 2010
—2——-F CE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FExT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/ (loss) before tax BRELAD =R (B518) 279,684 (69,994)
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax #&#HEEREHRITR
rate of 25% (2010: 25%) 25% =T E 2 Bi1E
(Z=—2F 1 25%) 69,921 (17,499)
Tax effect of income that is not BERBWRAZ
taxable B (61,720) -
Tax effect of expenses that are not REIHIFiFX 2
deductible Fis e e 5,578 1,729
Tax effect of unused tax losses not K& 2 KB FHFIE
recognised BBz g e 759 13,955
PRC dividend withholding tax AR AR S TR I HR 1,222 -
Effect of different tax rates of B AR ZER Rz
subsidiaries - - 1,815
Income tax expense FrERix 15,760 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

11.

98

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’q)

BE-_T——

FH_A=t—HIFE

1. WAL E)

(i) Discontinued operation (i) EBRIEKEEK
2011 2010
= O A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(&%)

Profit/(loss) before tax BRELAD =R (B518) 14,926 (80,028)
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax #HEHEFRFEHRITE

rate of 25% (2010: 25%) 25%=tE 2 BiIR

(ZE—FF : 25%) 3,732 (20,007)

Tax effect of income that is not BERBEUA 2

taxable Biigs e (10,523) (129)
Tax effect of expenses that are ENGIEi S

not deductible b S - 2,505
Tax effect of temporary REREFEREZ

differences not recognised b S - 17,632
Tax effect of unused tax losses RER 2 KREAFIE

not recognised BiEZHETE 6,791 -
Income tax expense Fri8miRx - 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after
charging/(crediting) the following:

2T+ _A=1+—HILFE

12. RFERFM(E8)

AEBRAEE 2EF, (BE) T
MER,(FEA) U T RIREDIH

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
REGEXR RESILCES aif
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
:i__¢ 7 ﬁ :E__¢ 7 ﬁ :ﬁ__¢ 7 E
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
THR T TiEn Thn ThR Tén
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
E2]) (E5l) (E5)
Amortisation B - - 1,510 - 1,570 -
Depreciation e 1,903 - 4,041 2,906 5,944 2,906
Directors’ emoluments EEl
- As directors -fFRES 482 273 - - 482 273
- For management -FAERE 3112 3,742 162 208 3,334 3,950
3,654 4,015 162 208 3,816 4,223
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE  BER
plant and equipment REER 40 - 2,588 - 2,628 -
Operating leases charges mefEx 4,915 259 2,483 2,245 7,398 2,504
Auditor's remuneration T E 950 500 - - 950 500
Cost of inventories sold BERERR 177,992 - 74,616 71,164 252,608 71,164
Exchange loss ERER 1,654 - - - 1,654 -
Loss on deemed disposal ofa ~ BfEHE-EHEAT
subsidiary ER - - - 3,939 - 3,939
Gain on disposals of HENBAR W&
subsidiaries (2,727) - (42,002) - (44,819) -
Loss on disposals of HEHE
subsidiaries e 315 - - 14,031 315 14,031
(ain on disposal of associates  HEEZ AT zu - - - (1,414) - (1,414)
Impairment loss on other HitEWFEY
receivables WEFE - 51,029 679 34,135 679 85,164
Staff costs including directors’  ETF&
remuneration (BFEEZHH)
Salaries, bonus and allowances I% - AR 28 19,195 7978 18,562 22,446 31,757 30,424
Equity-settled share-based ~ RELEERA
payments SGERE] - 512 - 4,064 - 4576
Contribution to retirement BINERIET AL
benefit schemes 3,237 52 1,723 1,710 4,960 1,762
22,432 8,542 20,285 28,220 42,17 36,762
Cost of inventories sold of discontinued operation CRIEEEER CHEFERALE

includes staff costs, depreciation and operating
lease charges of approximately HK$10,830,000
(2010: HK$12,875,000) which are included in the
amounts disclosed separately above.

SRlET

BEIRA  FEREEHESH
%10,830,000/ 8 T (= F —FF :
 BEt AU LB

12,875,000/& 7t)

W25 REE o

X NEBEBRAR ¢ —E——FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

BE—_T——

FH-A=t—HIFE

13. EEREEME

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=#M<
The emoluments of each of the directors were BREEMEWT -
as follows:
Equity-settled  Retirement
Salariesand  share option scheme Total
Name of director Fees allowances benefits  contributions  remuneration
RELE
Bty ik IEREN BRERN  BUGHEER gy
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tin Tin Tin Tin TiEn
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-E--£
TZR=T-ALEE
Executive directors Hies
Guan Guisen BER) - 1518 - 2 1520
Lei Chunxiong () FA) - 1016 - 2 1018
Cheung Wai () REW) - 571 - 4 575
Cheung Frank (i Cheung Frank (i) - 219 - 2 21
- 3,324 - 10 3,334
Non-executive director Fungs
Li Yuezhong (i) % B i) 81 . - - 81
Independent non-executive directors ~ Bu3iiTES
Wang Zhongmin (i) TR 81 - - - 81
Gu Jiawang (i) AR (i) 81 - - - 81
Fong Chi Wah it 120 - - - 120
Wang Ruiping (iv) T () 80 - - - 80
He Zhiyi (i) fI54(v) 39 - - - 39
482 3,324 - 10 3816
Year ended 31 December 2010 BEZ3-ZE
ToAZT-ALFR
Executive directors i
Cheung Wai e - 2,847 - 12 2,859
Cheung Frank Cheung Frank - 568 512 11 1,091
- 3415 512 PR 3,950
Independent non-executive directors  BUi7ES
Fong Chi Wah i 120 - - 120
Jin Qingjun (v) HiE) 39 - - - 39
Wang Ruiping I5Y 60 = = - 60
He Zhiyi (vi) 1540 54 - - - 5
213 3415 512 PR 4023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEk{EEME®)
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (@) ES=M=#)

(i) Appointed on 28 February 2011 (i) E—ZE——F-_A=-+//\H
BEE

(i) Resigned on 28 February 2011 (ii) E=E——F=ZHA=+NH
BHE

(iii) Appointed on 28 April 2011 (iii) E_Z——FMA-+/\H
BEE

(iv)  Retired on 28 April 2011 (iv) E=E-——FOmOA=+NH
BE

(v) Resigned on 26 April 2010 (v) E_Z—ZTFMA-+H
BHE

(vi)  Appointed on 19 July 2010 (vi) E-ZE-ZFtAtTNAE
=1t

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ (b) ENUESHFMAL

emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group FRAEEZR RS T

during the year included 2 (2010: 2) directors ATBEME(ZE-—FF

whose emoluments are reflected in the MBAEE > HMEBRLEX

analysis presented above. The emoluments Sl z ol e BT =R (=

of the remaining 3 (2010: 3) individuals are set Z2-ZFF  =ZR)ATzZHE

out below: T
2011 2010

—F——-F —Z-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET TABT

Basic salaries and allowances HARTERERL 2,305 3,501
Retirement benefit scheme RIRIBAIGT2IHER

contributions 11 31

2,316 3,532
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

13.

14.

102

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’

emoluments (Cont’d)

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

13.

EEREEME @)

(b) HUESEFHMALE)

The remuneration fell within the following NFTHIEE 2 H
band:
2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/8 7T 3 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 TE

1,500,0007% T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,500,001 TE

2,000,0007& 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors or the
highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,000
per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension
scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of this subsidiary. The
only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

15.

16.

B

ET——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

£ —=

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 15 XAaB#EEBAEMER R
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE A,/ (E518)
COMPANY
The profit for the year (2010: loss for the year) RAREEABLEEREN(=ZF—
attributable to owners of the Company included a Z2F  FAFE)BEBREEFTALRAT
profit of approximately HK$227,822,000 (2010: loss B R 3k 2 % R#9227,822,0007 7T
of HK$121,650,000) which has been dealt with in (ZZ2—Z%F : F5$#E121,650,00078
the financial statements of the Company. JT) °
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 16. BRIEKEER
Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement R 35 7= A 5] B New Smart Version
dated 21 October 2011 (as supplemented by a Limitedd] V2 AR =T ——F +
supplemental agreement dated 23 November B-+—BzEEmR(KARA=
2011) entered into between the Company and New E-——F+—-A=-t+=HzZ®@RxH
Smart Version Limited, the Group disposed 100% HER)  AEBHER —FEWE
equity interest in a subsidiary, SYSCAN Holdings ‘» B SYSCAN Holdings Limited }
Limited and all its subsidiaries and associates H2HMB AR RBE AR 22
(Note 39(d) (ii)). The disposal was completed on 28 AR A RE RS (FEES9(d) (i) ° HESE
December 2011, and the Group has discontinued ERZE——F+ZA=Z+N\H=E
its manufacture and sale of optical image capturing B AEBERFRALLEERPE
devices, chips and other optoelectronic products in SEREEXAEZGBIEN B
the PRC during the year. FREMAEERZER -
The profit/(loss) for year from the discontinued FREALEREEB 2 AN
operation is analysed as follows: (BB DAWT :
2011 2010
—2-—F Z—ZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss of discontinued operation SR EREE (26,394) (80,029)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HED KR IEEBR G
operation (note 39(d)(ii) (B EE39(d)(ii)) 41,320 -
14,926 (80,029)

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

16.

104

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Cont’d)

The results of the discontinued operation which has
been included in the consolidated profit or loss, are
as follows:

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

16. ORIKEEK &)

BRIEEEER o EBECMT R
N =g -E

2011 2010
—®——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
Turnover R 80,671 85,711
Cost of sales SHER A (74,616) (71,164)
Gross profit EF 6,055 14,547
Other income Heabg A 3,436 11,674
Selling expenses HEMX (7,248) (8,866)
Administrative expenses TR (15,805) (14,264)
Research and development expenses #ff%: 2 B3 a4 (9,732) (11,327)
Other operating expenses Hh & B (856) (10,925)
Equity-settled share-based payment R ERH X518 - (4,064)
Loss from operations ¥R (24,150) (23,225)
Finance costs BE R A (2,578) 617)
Share of losses of associates MBS N T HEE (438) (5,495)
Impairment loss on other receivables HfhERERHFEEE - (34,135)
Gain on disposal of associates HERE A TR - 1,414
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A Uk (EE) 772 (14,031)
Loss on deemed disposal of a BEHE—HEHEA TN
subsidiary &8 - (3,939)
Loss before tax BRELATE 18 (26,394) (80,028)
Income tax expense FriS®iBas - (1)
Loss for the year EEEIE (26,394) (80,029)

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of
the dis-continued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Cont’d)

17.

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

16. ORIKEEK &)
FRORILERERESTEFE

operation for the year are as follows: mr
2011 2010
—E——F —E2-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(E275)
Net cash generated from operating  && EEFTE
activities Be&he 65,377 36,030
Net cash generated used in investing && & B
activities HeERE (45,639) (93,836)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES(FrA), g
financing activities BEREFH (51,239) 72,646
(31,501) 14,840

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/

17. SRER(FE)
FRESRWERF (FIE) IR

(loss) per share is based on the following: BUTE8EBE
Continuing and Continuing Discontinued
discontinued operations operations operation
BERCALSEEE BREEER BALEEEK
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
~2-—-% -2-%Ff Z%--f “Z-TF -B--§ C-T-Ff
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAR THET TR THER TR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51) (E51)
Earnings &5
Earnings for the purpose of R RERER
calculating basic earings per BRI B
share 283071 (148983 264586 (69994 18485 (78,989
Finance costs saving on conversion = 7817 < i & %17
of contingently issuable TRRER T A
convertible FrEiE 2 MERA
loans outstanding 134 - 134 = - =
Earnings for the purpose of R ERREERA
calculating diluted earnings per 227
share 283205 (148983 264720 (69994 18485 (78,989

hEAF L EEERAR e —E—FF% 105



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

17.

106

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Cont'd)

B

ET——H+ZA=+—HILFE

17. BRER(EE)#)

Continuing and Continuing Discontinued
discontinued operations operations operation
BERCRIEREEE HECSEER BRILTEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
~2--§% “2-Tf -B--§ “Z-TFf C-B--f C—T-%F
’000 ‘000 ’000 '000 ’000 '000
Tk Th Tk TR TR TR
Number of shares RAHEA
Issued ordinary shares R-B—AE2&fT
at 1 January EER 2,640,889 2,076,898 2,640,889 2,076,898 2,640,889 2,076,898
Effect of placement of shares RERD 2 E 508,562 270,052 508,562 270,052 508,562 270,052
Effect of exercise of share options {T{EiMRiE> & - 12,230 - 12,230 - 12,230
Effect of consideration shares ~ ERTRERHzZE
issued 183,390 - 183,390 - 183,390 -
Effect of conversion of convertible RRFABRRET 2 5E
loans 148,603 - 148,603 - 148,603 -
Weighted average number of Rt EERER
ordinary shares for the purpose BRIz EER
of calculating basic earnings per  MEFIE
share 3,481,444 2359180 3,481,444 2,359,180 3,481,444 2,359,180
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary 2% B 1 /7 (B R/
shares arising from share options 2 B EHLER 2
outstanding 7 28,265 S 28,265 - 28,265 -
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ZE4 BT/ 2%
shares arising from contingently — #{TA#RIRE D <&
issuable convertible loans EEELER T2
outstanding 1,165,610 - 1,165,610 - 1,165,610 -
Weighted average number of A tEsREE
ordinary shares for the purpose B F|Z Z&R
of calculating diluted earnings per  JIEFIE
share 4675319 2,359,180  4,675319 2,359,180 4,675,319 2,359,180

Basic earnings per share from the discontinued
operation is HK 0.53 cents per share (2010: loss
per share of HK 3.35 cents per share) and diluted
earnings per share from the discontinued operation
is HK 0.40 cents per share, based on the profit for
the year from discontinued operation attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$18,485,000 (2010: loss of approximately
HK$78,989,000) and the denominators used are the
same as those detailed above for both basic and
diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE—_T——

FH-A=t—HIFE

18. % - BEKRE

Group
158
Furniture Machinery
Leasehold and office and Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
FAR
RENEER BOERE BERRE A& fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn T#n
Cost A
At 1 January 2010 R-E-F£-f-H 5,068 9,656 35,757 4924 55,405
Additions hE - 1,185 5,392 611 7,188
Disposals/written off HE /s - (4,154) (20,309) (1,161) (25,624)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (5,146) - - - (5,146)
Exchange differences ERER 78 (987) 1,116 3 920
At 31 December 2010 and R-E-Z£+-A=1+-AR
1 January 2011 “2--£-f-H - 5,700 21,956 5,087 32,743
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERBLR 1,767 3,356 - 483 5,606
Transferred from construction
in progress HERIREA - - 6,613 - 6,613
Additions RE 666 3,837 19,380 441 24,324
Disposals/written off HE /e - (228) (4,729) (2,880) (7,837)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT (739) (7,384) (44.398) (2,804) (55,329)
Exchange differences ERER 75 420 1178 175 1848
At 31 December 2011 W-E—-E+-A=t-H 1,769 5,701 - 502 7972
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZERAE
At 1 January 2010 R-E-Z£-f-H 4,207 3,370 34,774 2,197 44548
Charge for the year REERY - 226 2,286 394 2,906
Disposals/written off HE /Hisk (4,246) (640) (13,585) (937) (19,408)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (5,788) - (5,788)
Exchange differences ERER 3 (641) 657 46 101
At 31 December 2010 and W-B-2E+-A=1-HR
1 January 2011 “2--F-f-H - 2,315 18,344 1,700 22,359
Charge for the year REERY 21 3,198 1,420 599 5,944
Disposals/written off HE /M - (148) (3,148) (105) (3,401)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT (129) (4,470) (17,351) (2,128) (24,078)
Exchange differences ERER 2 169 735 83 1,011
At 31 December 2011 RZE--E+ZA=1-R 622 1,064 - 149 1835
Carrying amount K
At 31 December 2011 RZE--E+-A=1-R 1,147 4,637 - 353 6,137
At 31 December 2010 RZE-EE+-A=1-R - 3,385 3,612 3,387 10,384
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20.

108

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

19. FEMNLHBERIE

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHERT FHERT
At 1 January E’q‘—}% —H 45,631 -
Additions =1 - 46,601
Amortisation of prepaid land lease E&fﬁ%ﬁﬁiiﬂﬂ‘ﬁ#\
payments (1,570) (946)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT (45,483) -
Exchange difference B =48 1,422 (24)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H - 45,631

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent
payments for land use rights outside Hong Kong

REBE AN HBEEREERE
BN AR T + b fE A2

under medium term leases. K °
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 20. EEIRE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E-——F E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTHET
At 1 January Kn—B—H 57,160 3,536
Additions NE 39,750 53,505
Transfer to property, plant and EEYE « BERRKE
equipment (6,613) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT (92,119) -
Exchange difference EH =R 1,822 119
At 31 December Rt+t=-—B=+—H - 57,160

The Group’s construction in progress comprises
costs incurred on machinery and equipment.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011

REBEEIREOHMERREE
HEZHEA o
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

21.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. RIBRARIZIRE
Company
AN
2011 2010

—®——% —2-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHBT

Unlisted investments, at cost FLEHRE  BHHRAE 1,018,088 74,698

Less: Impairment losses B OREEE - (74,698)
1,018,088 -

Due from subsidiaries FEURE B A B FRIE 140,305 105,184

Less: Impairment losses B OREEE - (105,184)
140,305 -

Due to subsidiaries FESH B A BFIE 795 -
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are FEULFE A5 B B 2 &) 7R 7B T SR 34K 3

unsecured and interest-free. KRB o

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December MBRAEAR-ZE——F+=A8

2011 are as follows:

=t+—BZHBWT :

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and capital/registered

operation capital Percentage of
Nam HMEY, 3l SRTRESMRA ownership interest Principal activities
£ REXBH &R BEREIL FEEK
Direct Indirect
EE B
Country Praise Enterprises BVI 769,231 ordinary 100% - Investment holding
Limited (“Country Praise”) HERLZHE  sharesof no par RELER
value
769,231 R EE B
ZEBR
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding

&R 10,0007 7T REERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 21. RBARZIRE (#)

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and capital/registered

operation capital Percentage of
Nam AWML, M EBRTRESRARownership interest Principal activities
% REXBH &R BEREEIE TEXR
Direct Indirect
EE BE
Bright Voyage Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
REERZHEE 50,0007 REZR
Bright Voyage Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
BE 10,0005 T TERH
ARAE (L R)RELEABRAE The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100% Trading of mobile
(Beijing Shangyin Investment R AK#123,330,0007T phones and
Consultancy Co. Ltd.) computer
equipments
BEERBSENENR
B4
TRAREAEEREERLE The PRC RMB45,000,000 - 100% Information system
(B2=SNEE-=N) ] AE#45,000,0007T maintenance and
(Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information development
Technology Co. Ltd.) (“Beijing services
Tiantongsaibo”) EEAREERRE
R
TREERMEEEERAR  ThePRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
(Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial ] A#100,000,0007 card and related
Management Co. Ltd.) customer services
REUBNFREBE
F iR
EHBREBBEREERAT The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
([ BB ) i AR#5,000,0007T card and related
(Shenyang Shanglian Huitong customer services
Commercial Services Co. Ltd.) RUEBMSFREEE
(“Shenyang Shanglian”) E R
MMEGSERNEERAR The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 80% Provision of prepaid
(MuMEEER 1) th AK#4,000,0007 card and related

(Hangzhou Qianbao Gaohui
Technology Co. Ltd.)
(“Hangzhou Qianbao”)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 21. RBARZIRE (#)

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and capital/registered

operation capital Percentage of
Name MY 85l ERTRESHMRAKownership interest Principal activities
a8 REEME afER BEREIL FEEK
Direct Indirect
EE HE
T REAENEEERAH The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(ABLRSERHERRAR) FE AK#10,000,0007 marketing and
(Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu sales
Commercial Co. Ltd.) BNEYFEERE
(Formerly known as €

TRSEBHEARAT)

LEREBERRDA The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(Shanghai Jinghui Commercial ~ 1] AK#1,000,0007T marketing and
Co. Ltd.) sales
%Eg%%%ﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
BRRERRERRAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(Jinan Gaohuitong Commercial ~ HEd AE%1,000,0007T marketing and
Co. Ltd.) sales
%Eg%%%ﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
nNEEBERRAH The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Trading of liquor
(BN ERRBRLAR) HE AK%2,000,0007T EEER
(Hangzhou Gaohuitong

Commercial Co. Ltd.)
(Formerly known as

RMMNSERRARAT)

RImEEEEREEERR AT The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Prepaid phone card
(DY D) hE AR #2,000,0007T distribution
(Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong BHEFEFRH

Commercial Management Co.
Ltd.) (“Shenzhen Shanglian”)

LWASEREERAR The PRC RMB1,010,000 - 100% Inactive
(Shanxi Gaohui Commercial Co. i AE#1,010,0007T gmEK
Ltd)
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22.

112

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

22. BILERE

Group
rEH
Software
B4
HK$’000
FTHERT
Cost RS
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 RZB-Z2F-A—HK
—F-FF+=-A=T—H -
Additions NE 4,386
At 31 December 2011 R=Z2——%+=-A=+—H 4,386
Accumulated amortisation E-SSg: &
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 R=ZB-Z2F-A—-HK
—Z-ZF+=-HA=+—H -
Charge for the year REERX -
At 31 December 2011 R=—ZE——F+=-B=+—H =
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2011 R—Z——&+=-A=+—H 4,386

At 31 December 2010

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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B RS HR2R M
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
23. GOODWILL 23. BHE
Group
X5E
Country Hangzhou
Praise Group Qianbao Kanghui
(Note 39(a))  (Note 39(b))  (Note 39(b)) Total
Country
Praise Group W25 31
(HtiE39(a)) GEXED) (Ht&E3o(b)) &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TEx T TET
Cost B
At 1 January 2010, R-E-ZF-f-
31 December 2010 and A ZE-EF+C
1 January 2011 B=t-BRK=%
——f¥-A-A - - - -
Arising on acquisition of  EKEBMEATMEL
subsidiaries (note 39(a),(b)) (K=£39(a) * (b)) 1,043,256 8,719 5,752 1,057,727
Disposal of subsidiaries &K B2 & (Kizt
(note 39(d)(i) 39(d)(i)) (989) - (5,752) (6,741)
Exchange differences EHES 41,386 - - 41,386
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%+=A
== 1,083,653 8,719 - 1,092,372
Accumulated impairment Z:itR{EEE
losses
At 1 January 2010, R-E-ZF-f
31 December 2010 and —fZE-BF
1 January 2011 +ZA=t—-Hk
“Z-—-f¥-H-H - - - -
Impairment loss recognised RAEEREZ >
in the current year REEFE - - - -
Exchange differences ERERE - - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+ZAH
=+-H - - - -
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_FH
=t-H 1,083,653 8,719 - 1,092,372

At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+ZRH
=+-8 - - - -

hEAF L TEEERAR e —E——FFH% 113



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

23.

114

GOODWILL (cont’d)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from
that business combination. Before recognition of
impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill
had been allocated as follows:

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

23.

REBSHUB 2BEDRKE
BoREEAKEZERS D
REZRESELBN(REELSE
) - RERRERBIE A - BE
ZIREESEMNT

2011

—E——F

HK$’000

FET

General trading operations (“CGU 1) —REEXK(ReEEENT]) 211,265
Prepaid card and related operations BN FRIEEFERK

(“CGU 27) (MREEEEM2]) 881,107

1,092,372

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin
and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 3%. This rate does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets.

The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast

cash flows from the Group’s CGU 1 and CGU 2 are
19.55% and 22.46%, respectively.
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BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. REZERTFIZRE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Unlisted investments in the PRC: RHBZELHRE :
Share of net assets TMEEEFE 44,323 44,515
Impairment losses REEE (19,960) (19,960)
Disposal of investments in associates HEREE AT ZIRE (24,363) -
Goodwill [ 822 -
822 24,555
Due from an associate FEUR — RE B N Bl 5RIE 2,914 599
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, FE U — R B & N B Zh1E T3 A E IR
interest free and has no fixed repayment term. #H - REREEEZERE -
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December KEBHME AN _-_E——F
2011 are as follows: TZA=E+—BZHFBUT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable to
operation the Group
Name SMKY/ M  Registered capital AEEELRE Principal activities
i) REXME BEfkRE Bt TEXEK
EEEM(IR)EFEKER  The PRC RMB4,000,000 25% Value added services
EAAR(RE] I AEK#4,000,0007 for prepaid card
(Kanghui Financial (Beijing) B FEERS
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.)
(“Kanghui”)
FRANINEEERAT e —FT——FFHR 115
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24.

2

116

BE_T——F+_HA=1+—HLFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 24. REFENTZRE(#E)
Summarised financial information in respect of the REFHL NG 2T EERMEE
Group’s associates is set out below: BT
2011 2010
—2-—F —ZT-FTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT THET
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H
Total assets MEE 2,253 50,806
Total liabilities mafs (3,792) (724)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB EBERE (1,539) 50,082
Group’s share of associates’ net REBEDGHBENTZ
assets EEEE - 24,555
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=t—BLEFE
Total revenue UG R 676 664
Total loss for the year FREEE (2,029) (24,820)
Group’s share of associates’ losses FRAEFEDLEE AT 2
for the year i (538) (5,495)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiRZEFIERZIRE

ENTITIES
Group
rEE
2011 2010
N —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Unlisted investments in the PRC: RPEZELETRE :
Share of net assets arising from WEELE CEMEEFE
acquisition (note 39(a)) (Ht5E39(a)) 1,102 -
Share of loss for the year PMEERERE (1,117)
Exchange differences BEHELE 15 -

Kanghui and Hangzhou Qianbao were originally
jointly controlled entities of the Group. Kanghui and
Hangzhou Qianbao finally became an associate and
a subsidiary of the Group, respectively, as at 31

December 2011.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011

EERMMNERESAEELE
EHER R-FT——F+=-A
=t+—HEERMMNEBREL DR
BAAEE—HEEDQT
e

—

KB A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
26. INVENTORIES 26. 78
Group
LW
2011 2010
—g——& -—z-3F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
Raw materials Bl - 5,507
Work in progress B3 I 1,410 10,891
Finished goods o) 748 7,685
2,158 24,083
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. FEWERFX

The Group’s trading terms with customers are
mainly on credit. The credit terms generally range
from 30 to 60 days. For new customers, payment
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables,
based on the invoice date, and net of allowance, is
as follows:

FEEERF2EERREBRE
& - FEH—-RNFI0E60H -
R¥FEFMS » —REFENTRE -
NG B R UL B 2 W R A 4 R AR
B c EETEHERBLEER o

AEE 2z BWERR (23 E A #st
& WEMRERE) ZRED M0
T

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FERT

Up to 30 days 30HZA 55,628 9,998
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 9,606 479
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 1,313 410
91 to 180 days 91HZE1808 3,061 -
Over 181 days 181HU L 1,196 -
70,804 10,887

As at 31 December 2011, an allowance was made
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of
approximately HK$Nil (2010: HK$325,000).

R-E——F+=-A=+—H &
AR EEWRRAR 2 BELNAS
BT (ZE—ZF : 325,000/87T) °
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of
HK$5,605,000 (2010: HK$889,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aging analysis of these trade

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

27. FEWERI (&)

R-EB——F+-A=1+—8H >
FEUW BR7X5,605,000/8 T (=& —F
F : 889,000 Jt ) B %8 HA 1B R
B ZEREESRIAHEELT
BeBIUEFER - ZSERERN

receivables is as follows: ZIREBRDATUT -
2011 2010
—2——F —Z-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 30 days 30AZA 15 479
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 1,314 410
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 3,080 -
Over 91 days 91BNk 1,196 -
5,605 889

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade

AREBEWRR ZREABEATIE

receivables are denominated in the following oE
currencies:

2011 2010
—B-—F ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
RMB AR 70,804 918
US$ EH - 9,969
Total S5 70,804 10,887
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28.

e

30.

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

FIXED DEPOSITS 28. EEFH
The fixed deposits are in RMB and at fixed interest EEFHRAAREE » LAFF
rate of 4.4% p.a. and therefore are subject to fair RAABEEBZRFE - MAmY
value interest rate risk. DN ERZRE o
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 29. 2 #EBITEMRURRITR
AND CASH BALANCES REER
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s pledged bank R-B-ZF+=-A=+—H K
deposits represented deposits pledged to banks to SE 2 IRFRITERIEEBITIR
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as R DUBUS B T8 SRR M S22 PR =R SR AT
set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The BRFAEBZRITHERE - BHAF
deposits are in HK$ and RMB and at fixed interest RUBTRARETHE » LUFEF
rate ranged from 0.02% to 0.7% p.a. and therefore ZNF0.02EZR0.7E 2EELE:T
are subject to fair value interest rate risk. B MERHAFERERERE
As at 31 December 2011, the bank and RZE——F+ZA=+—H > K
cash balances of the Group denominated in SEUARETEZRITRASE
RMB amounted to HK$153,426,000 (2010: §83£ 153,426,000 8B T (=& — &
HK$25,144,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign F 125,144,000/ T) - AR H iR
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign SN R BECH B SMNE BB IR B KR
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration (HEE - EERNVEEESRE)
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
TRADE PAYABLES 30. FETER
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables, AEEZEAERERR(RBEERER
based on the date of receipt of goods, is as follows: SE)ZERERONAT ¢
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B-—F ZZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 8,922 11,721
91 to 180 days 91HZ£180H 9,183 768
181 to 365 days 181HZ365H 41 37
Over 12 months 128 A Lk - 54
18,146 12,580
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30.

31.

32.

120

TRADE PAYABLES (Cont'd) 30.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

FEAS BRR (42)

REBEEMNERAZERABEATIE
BEHIE

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET
RMB AR 18,146 10,825
US$ EY - 181
18,146 12,580

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 31.

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BORROWINGS 32.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group does not have
any borrowings.
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32. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2010, the borrowings were
repayable within one year. The carrying amounts of

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

32. fEFK(#)

RIE-ZFEF+"A=+—H &
RER—FREE AEEERZ

the Group’s borrowings were denominated in the FREEBENUTSEMEIE :
following currencies:
Group
rEE
RMB US$ Total
AR E Y &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
2010 —s-®
Bank loans RITEX 14,679 11,927 26,606
Other loan HER 11,838 - 11,838
26,517 11,927 38,444

The directors estimated the fair value of the Group’s
borrowings, by discounting their future cash flows
at the market rate, to be as follows:

EERMSANRITBRRE SR
hET 2 A EBERDFHENT :

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
TiET

Bank loans RITEF 26,606
Other loan HiER 11,838

38,444
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BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

32. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 32. fEFK(#)
The average interest rates at 31 December 2010 R-E-=BF+_A=+—H¥FH

were as follows: FZHMT -
2010
—F 25
Bank loans (Note (a)) RITEFR(HE()) 4.16%
Other loan (Note (b)) S (b)) 6.5%
(@ Bank loans were secured by a charge over (@ MOTERDULRERRZRIT
the Group’s bank deposits. At 31 December FREEAR - R=Z—FF
2010, bank loans of HK$26,606,000 were +ZA=+—H " RITEXK
arranged at floating rates, thus exposing 26,606,000 T J3 LAE B A
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and ZZH o AU AEEEEE
foreign currency risk. BEREF R E b & I E [

B o
(o) Other loans were secured by pledge of b) HMEERDU—HBE2ENRES
75% equity interests of a wholly-owned RAET75% R AFE s EH T o
subsidiary. At 31 December 2010, other loan R=ZB-ZFt+-A=+—
of HK$11,838,000 were arranged at fixed H » H & 11,838,000/8
interest rates and exposed the Group to fair TNUEEERZH > BAit
value interest rate risk. AEBEERH A FERER

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 33. @AENARKE

On 21 January 2011, the Company entered into
the convertible loans subscription agreement
with Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited (the
“Vendor”, the then ultimate holding company of
Country Praise Group as defined in note 39(a))
pursuant to which the Company will issue zero
coupon redeemable and convertible loans in a
maximum aggregate principal amount of HK$700
million to the Vendor to satisfy in part of the
consideration upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions set out below as adjustment to the
consideration of the acquisition of the entire
interest of Country Praise Group (Note 39(a)). The
convertible loans will be issued in various tranches
and the issue of each tranche is subject to the
satisfaction by Country Praise Group of each of
the following scenarios. The convertible loans will
be matured on 31 December 2015 and can be
converted at any time before maturity at an initial
conversion price (“Initial Conversion Price”) of
HK$0.32 per ordinary share of the Company.
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RZZB——F—-—A=t—H &2
A EEMighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited ([ &7 | » AMFE39(a)E &
2 Country Praise Group E & 2 &
KERDARTLARRERZE
W& > Bt NARERES BT
7 & 4% %6 & % 3% 700,000,000 % 7T
ZEEAERRABRER » U1E
H e R T A EE TR A
#& Country Praise Group & 2B # &
(Mta£39(a)) 2 REMm &2 K
B - IREREIMEIT M
it 7] #2 B% f& 25 72 %5 Country Praise
GroupER U T &IEBERE » 7 A
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33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

Scenario 1
If during the period between 1 October 2010 and 31
March 2011:

(@ the monetary amounts of prepaid cards
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds
RMB200,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which
will be satisfied by the Company issuing
equivalent amount of convertible loans to the
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price;

(o) the number of prepaid cards issued by
Country Praise Group exceeds 185,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible loans to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price; and

() the aggregate transaction amounts executed
under the prepaid cards issued by Country
Praise Group exceeds RMB135,000,000,
the consideration will be adjusted upward
by HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied
by the Company issuing equivalent amount
of convertible loans to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

33. HAREANE@@)

BR—
MR —Z-—ZFF+A—-HEZZ
——HfZ=ZRA=1+—BLHH :

(@  Country Praise Group 2 7&
HFERFSEBBARY
200,000,0007T * X1EH L5
25,600,000/8 7T - BEANRE
BHEAQTBBEE T BT
MR RE IR P L iRE
# ¥ 55 80,000,000 AR 7% A ]
TERzERAESENTRER
BRXAT

(b)  Country Praise Group 2 7&
{2 < & = ¥ 18 185,000
ik - K1E 48 £3825,600,000
B BEEREBSHEA
AEBEMERBRITHTER
IRER IR D HIBEERR
80,000,000 f% 4= 2t ) & 18 IR
ZEAESENTRRERE
i %

(c)  Country Praise Group3{T2
ERFZRFHEEBESER
i A E%135,000,0007T @ X
& #% £ #825,600,0005% JT
ERARELHEAQAEBM
BEARTHERRETIZRD
% 5 ¥ {8 ¥ #2 5%, 80,000,000
BRALNAEBRZEAE L5
AR ER AT ©
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33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

124

Scenario 2
If during the period between 1 April 2011 and 30
September 2011:

(@)

the monetary amount of prepaid cards
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds
RMB330,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which
will be satisfied by the Company issuing
equivalent amount of convertible loans to the
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price;

the number of prepaid cards issued by
Country Praise Group exceeds 380,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible loans to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price; and

the aggregate transactions amounts executed
under the prepaid cards issued by Country
Praise Group exceeds RMB250,000,000,
the consideration will be adjusted upward
by HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied
by the Company issuing equivalent amount
of convertible loans to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011
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33.

FH-A=t—HIFE

HARENRE @)

BR=
MR- E——FNA—HEZZE
—— S HHA=1+HLHR :

(@)

©

Country Praise Group 2 &
HFERFSEBBARY
330,000,0007T & X1EH L5
25,600,000/8 7T - BENRE
BHEAQTBBEEFET
MR RE IR P L iRE
# 42 55 80,000,000 AR 7% A ]
TERzERESEEN TR
BRXAT

Country Praise Group 2 &
{J + 2 + £ = # 48 380,000
ik - K1E 48 £ 3825,600,000
B BEERESHEAA
HEBEMBERRITHER
IRER IR AL R EERR
80,000,000 A% 7= A &) & i@ i
ZEAESENTRRERE
i %

Country Praise Group2%1T 2
ERF2ZRFHEEBRESER
i A R#250,000,0007T @ X
& #% £ #825,600,0005% JT
ERARELHAQAEBM
BERFRITHERRETIZA
& 5 ¥ {8 ¥ #2 5£,80,000,000
BRAQNAEBRZEAE S5
AR ER AT °
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33.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

Scenario 3

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not less
than RMB35,000,000, the maximum consideration
in form of convertible loans will be adjusted to
HK$500,000,000 (inclusive of the Convertible Bonds
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible loans to the Vendor.

Scenario 4

If the audited consolidated financial statements
of Country Praise Group, prepared based on
HKFRSs, show that the consolidated net profit for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not
less than RMB35,000,000 and the consolidated net
profit for the financial year ending 31 December
2012 is not less than RMB70,000,000, the
maximum consideration in form of convertible loans
will be adjusted to HK$700,000,000 (inclusive the
convertible loans issued under Scenario 1, Scenario
2 and Scenario 3 above (where applicable)), the
balance of the outstanding adjusted consideration
shall be satisfied by the Company issuing
appropriate equivalent amount of convertible loans
to the Vendor.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

33.

PREEFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR

HARENRE#)

BR=

fiti Country Praise Group 1R 15 & &
IR EER R 2 REZERS
BHRBEREE-_E——F1+=8
=t+t—HLEBBREEZHFEFFE
RO A K¥35,000,0007T @ BAA]
BREFRAFAZEERESAE
£500,000,0007& 7t (BER EX1E
M—EER=(NBER)R T2’
BRER)  FMAZTZERARNELR
HEEAQAREROESFRTEE
ZRAESE 2 TBRERZ(T °

1557 M

fiti Country Praise Group 1R 15 & &
B RELERFR C LEBERGESH
BHRBEREE-_E——F1+=8
=t HLEBBREEZHFEFFE
A AR #35,000,0007T @ RE
E_E—_—_F+ZA=1+—HLH
BEEZGZEFABETIORARKE
70,000,0007T * AR ER A
A2 &SR EAFAEZ700,000,000
BT(BEREXER— - BRZ
RER=(AEA) BT BRKE
) 0 EWRIA 2 EARREREEE
HAQABEBEOBELBTEEZR
LB TBREERIT -
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33.

126

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

Scenario 5

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is less than
RMB35,000,000 but the consolidated net profit for
financial year ending 31 December 2012 is not less
than RMB70,000,000, the consideration in form of
convertible loans shall be adjusted based on the
average of the consolidated net profit of Country
Praise Group for the said two financial years
multiplied by a price-earning multiple of 12 times,
provided that the maximum consideration adjusted
pursuant to this scenario shall not be more than
HK$700,000,000 (inclusive of the convertible loans
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible loans to the Vendor.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction of the targets in
Scenario 2, no consideration adjustment in Scenario
1 will be made if none of the targets in Scenario 1 is
met.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

33.

HARENRE#)

BRh

fiti Country Praise Group 1 15 & &
IR EER R 2 REZERS
BHRBETREBE-E——F1+=8
=t+t—HLEBBREEZHFEFFE
2 A A R # 35,000,000 T © 1B E
E-E-——HF+ZA=+—HLH
BEEZGZEFABETIORARKE
70,000,0007T * AR[#IRER AT
RN 2R EERE LM ES REE
Country Praise Group Z ¥4 &
FAEEUA TR E12BELAE
HREBERAZR BB RNETESRE
#8700,000,0007& 7t (BIER L X1E
M—EER=(MBR) R T2’
RER) @ BMAZT 2 ERARKEER
HAEAQAREROESFRTEE
ZRESENTBRRERZ(T °

BEERBER-BE W EE
BiER—2BR  BAEELEER
— 2B -

2011
—EB——F
HK$’000
FHExT
Fair value of contingent consideration payable R=Z——F=—A=+ /\HZEHK

upon completion of acquisition of Country Y BECountry Praise Group#%

Praise Group on 28 February 2011 ENRARE2ZAFE 850,588
Issuance of convertible loans for Scenario 1 MIE R — 2T BRRER (80,393)
Issuance of convertible loans for Scenario 2  FER — T BRKRER (66,361)
Fair value change DT EEE (230,986)
Fair value of contingent consideration payable A=&——%+=-A=+—H

at 31 December 2011 EREAREZAFE 472,848
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33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 33. sAEMKE#)

(Cont’d)

The fair values of contingent consideration payable R=ZZFB——F-A=-+NBR=Z
at 28 February 2011 and 31 December 2011 are ——F+ZA=+—H  EFHA
based on valuation results of an independent firm REZAFEDERBILIEEMAE
of professional valuer, by using a probability model. AR ZEELERUBREXFEGHE
The principal assumptions used in the valuation o AREERERNZEEREZLOT ¢

model are as follows:
At At
28 February 31 December
2011 2011

R=F——F A —T——F
—A=+NB +=A=+-H

Expected life FEHAEARR 4.84 years 4.00 years
4.84%F 4.00%F

Exercise period 1TEEAR Issue date Issue date
to maturity to maturity

date date

BITREZE BITEZE

ESp = ESp =

Effective interest rate ERRI= 9.132% 22.541%
Share price IR0 B HK$0.400 HK$0.201
0.4005& T 0.20178 7T

Conversion price HimER HK$0.320 HK$0.320
0.320& T 0.320/8 T

Risk-free rate #5 [5 P SR Y == 1.797% 0.767%
Expected volatility TBHER B R 47.17% 47.65%

hRAF L NEBERAR e —S——FF% 127



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

34.

128

CONVERTIBLE LOANS

During the year, Country Praise Group has fulfilled
the conditions in Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 as
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company issued convertible
loans of principal amounts of HK$76,800,000 and
HK$76,800,000 on 22 July 2011 and 20 October
2011, respectively. The movement of convertible
loans during the year is set out below.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

34. THBRRKRER

M A » Country Praise Group &
WE M ERRMIEIBMEABI R —
REBER = 2R - Bt - XA F
PRIR=—FB——FLtA=-+t=-HR
“E-—Ft+AZTHBTEES
76,800,0007% T & 76,800,000 T
ZABBER - FRABRKBRERZ
BEWT o

Convertible loans issued upon fulfillment of
WEATERMBITZARRER

Scenario 1 Scenario 2
15— BRn=
Equity Liability Equity Liability
component component component component
R =Lt ERE D =Lt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET FET FET
At inception, at fair  F#REF A
value EE 35,719 44,674 31,203 31,158
Interest for the period FJ#4 £ X #
from inception to HifE 2 F 2
conversion - 61 - 73
Carrying amount just 5572
before conversion ERE{E 35,719 44 735 31,203 35,231
Conversion during  FR R
the year (35,719) (44,735) (31,203) (35,231)

At 31 December 2011 A== ——&F
+=A
=t+—H _

The interest charged for the year is calculated by
applying effective interest rates of 13% and 20% to
the liability components of convertible loans issued
under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 for the periods
from respective inception to respective conversion.
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOANS (Cont’d)

The fair values of both convertible loans at dates
of issuance are based on valuation results of
an independent firm of professional valuer. The
principal assumptions used in the valuation model
are as follows:

B

E_T——F+_A=1+—HI|FE

34. ARRE(#)

ARRER X FEIRETEH
REBYEXREEARZEEER
miGH - AREEER 2EEZR/RKR
LU

Convertible loans issued upon fulfillment of
REATERABITZARKRER

Scenario 1 Scenario 2
fBR— BR=

Equity Liability Equity Liability
component component component component
R EEH2 R BN
Principal amount of BRITARRER HK$76,800,000 HK$76,800,000
convertible loans issued  2#&% N/ATER 76,800,000/ T N/ATER 76,800,000/ 1T
Expected life TAHAHARR 4.44 years 4.44 years 4.20 years 4.20 years
4445 4445 4.20% 4205

Share price at the date of {TEH HK$0.305 HK$0.265
issue R ER 0.305/8 T N/ATiE R 0.2658 7T N/ATiE A

Conversion price HiaER HK$0.320 HK$0.320
0.320/& 7T N/ATER 0.320/8 T N/ATEF
Expected volatility FEHHE =R 45.8% N/ATER 47.5% N/ARE F
Risk-free rate REKEME 1.033% N/ATEH 0.666% N/ATEF

HEAF L TEEERAR ¢ —E——FFH% 129
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35. DEFERRED TAX 35. IRIEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets/ UTAAREERIANEIE
(liabilities) recognised by the Group. BE (&) -
PRC
dividend
with holding Tax
tax losses
HERE

FAMB B R

IEFERIH

Total

A

[=N-]
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FET
At 31 December 2010 and R=F—ZFF+=H
1 January 2011 =t—HRK
—E-——%—-HF—H - - —
Acquisition of a subsidiary g8 — BB A 5
Charge to profit or loss for st AR FEEE R
the year (note 11) (FftsE11) - 3,827 3,827
- origination and —ERMERCELER
reversal of temporary B[l
differences (1,222) (2,076) (3,298)
Exchange differences [EHEEE (31) 100 69
At 31 December 2011 R—E——F+—-A4
=+-A (1,253) 1,851 598
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax R BARRIRRMS - UTRIEL
balances (after offset) for statement of financial BIRAEER (HER) 2247 ¢
position purposes:
2011
—EB——fF
HK$’000
THERT
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBEAE (1,253)
Deferred tax assets FEREERE 1,851
598
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35.

36.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 35. IRIERLIE (&)
At the end of the reporting period the Group RIBEHBERE  AEEEE AR
has unused tax losses of HK$17,470,000 (2010: B AR E1817,470,0008 T (==
HK$62,842,000) available for offset against future — =5 : 62,842,000 7t ) 7] F LA
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised AR HORF o BULETIEE BRIE
in respect of HK$7,404,000 (2010: Nil) of such ERLIEE E7,404,0008 T (=& —
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised TE &) o AREETRBRIARIEF]
in respect of the remaining HK$10,066,000 (2010: FRIR - MR ER T 10,066,000 7T i
HK$62,842,000) due to the unpredictability of AERELEBEERE(ZZ—FF !
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised 62,842,000/& 7T) ° st ARIERBIIA
tax losses are losses of HK$10,066,000 (2010: 518 2 E51810,066,000/8 T (= F —
HK$62,842,000) that will expire in 2015. FTF 62,842,000 T) BER=-F
—HFEwW °
SHARE CAPITAL 36. BA
Number
of shares Amount
RHEE o]
Note ’000 HK$’000
Myat TR FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE.IBIL(=ZE
(2010: HK$0.01) each —Z % : 0.01787T)
ZEBR
At 1 January 2011 and R-—B——F—H—H
31 December 2011 F—E——F+=8
=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRHR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE.01EBT (==
(2010: HK$0.01) each —ZF :0.01787x)
ZEBR
At 1 January 2010 R-E—ZF—H—H 2,076,898 20,769
Issue of shares on placement REERRTIRG (a) 409,000 4,090
Exercise of share options 1TERB R HE (b) 154,991 1,550
At 31 December 2010 R-E—=FF+=8
=+—H 2,640,889 26,409
Issue of shares on placement RECERRTIRG (©) 625,000 6,250
Consideration shares issued ERITRERD 39(a) 218,750 2,187
Convertible loans converted into AR EF ARG
shares 34 480,000 4,800
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——%+=A
=+—H 3,964,639 39,646

PREEFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR
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36.

132

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

(@ On 21 April 2010, the Company and Oriental
Patron Asia Limited entered into a placing
agreement in respect of the placement of
409,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to independent investors at a price
of HK$0.165 per share. The placement
was completed on 4 May 2010 and the
premium on the issue of shares, amounting
to approximately HK$63,395,000, net of
share issue expenses, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

(o) During the year, the subscription rights
attaching to the 154,990,917 share options
were exercised in cash at the various
subscription prices ranged from HK$0.06 to
HK$0.44 per share (note 38), resulting in the
issue of 154,990,917 shares of HK$0.01 each
for a total consideration before expenses of
approximately HK$11,645,000.

() A placing was completed on 9 March 2011.
An aggregate of 625,000,000 placing shares
at a price of HK$0.32 per placing share
have been successfully placed by Oriental
Patron Asia Limited (the “Placing Agent”) to 4
investors. Details of the placing were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated
11 November 2010, 23 November 2010, 26
November 2010 and 9 March 2011.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.
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e NE )
(a) =FMA -+ —
ﬁ%&ﬁMﬁ
m/ EHAE=TE
REB®ESRO. 165,%752
REBHOEIBLIREERE
409,000,0008% = IX E{80.01
BI2EER BER=-Z
—SEERAMARTHK BT
A% 13 B 2 7% 2 #9.63,395,000
BT (HRERMETHESZ)E
FFARR T 2 R REER ©

m%
[

ﬂ%%
”DI
i<k il A

(b) R 154,990,917 17 88 IR
EFMRABEECEN TS
HXO 06/%7'5::0 44/%752%
BEREELLE S TE (M
38) » 347 154,990,917
REKREELI BT 2R
7 MBRHAZAI2BRES
#911,645,00058 7T °

© R=ZF-——F=AAHRER
—BEE RADMERA
A(TEEREAD EER
0.328 7T 2 BRI E4 5 K
& & i & 5 $£ 625,000,000
BEERD  REBHRZHF
BERADFAAHH-2-F
F+—-At—-A -Z2-%
F+—A=t+t=H =%—
2E+-A-tAARC-®
——F=RANBZAERE -
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36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, if any,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least
25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial
share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year.
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36.
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IR (&)

REBERBEBRE 2 REE
EEZARESE  EEERREL
MAAE - BEBHABELRRE
B AEBEAHAERY TRRZK
ERE(WA) ARREEEAR -
BHITHRVEEEEUREGT -
RBE-ZT——F+-A=1+—H
LFE > Z5EE  BRREFL
BHEZE -

REE MRS E R Pr £h oz i
AUME—IMERRE N2 EARERA » A
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37.

134

RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

and statement of changes in equity.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

37. f#E
AEE

FEBRBSERAZHNGER
HWARREZSERZ -

Company b N/NE]
Retained
Share Convertible profits/
premium  Contributed ~ Share-option  bonds equity  (accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
TERES  REER/
RIOVRER HARE  BREGG BhfiE  (ZFR) il
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tén Tén Tén Tén TR
At 1 January 2010 N-8-2E-A- 9,034 70,121 6,952 - (22,665) 63,442
Total comprehensive income A2 EWALE
for the year - - - - (121,650) (121,650)
Issue of shares on placement ~ REEEZTRA 63,395 - - - - 63,395
Release upon lapse of share  EEREX ME#ER
option - - (201) - 201 -
Share premium arising from ~ {TEBRERLY
exercise of share options Ri&E 18,218 - (8,169 - - 10,049
Recognition of share-based ~ BIRHRAFE
payments - - 4576 - - 4576
At 31 December 2010 and R-ZF-ZE+R
1 January 2011 Zt-AR=E—-%
-A-A 90,647 70,121 3,158 - (144,114) 19,812
Total comprehensive income for FR2EW AL
the year - - - - 227,822 227 822
Issue of shares on placement ~ WEEBEZTRA 175,696 - - - - 175,69
ssuance of convertible bonds ~ R{TaiRES - - - 66,922 - 66,922
Exercise of convertible bonds 1Tk ES 142,088 - - (66,922) - 75,166
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKRBAF 85,313 - - - - 85,313
At 31 December 2011 R-E--£+ZR
=t-H 493,744 70,121 3,158 - 83,708 650,731
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

37. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company as
fully paid bonus shares or in providing for the
premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Share-option reserve

The share-option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(q) to the financial
statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group’s share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement of
financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

BE—_T——

FH-A=t—HIFE

37. @)
EEEEREHN

()

(i)

(if)

(iv)

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR

B 17 m1E Rk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

37.

38.

136

RESERVES (Cont’d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(v)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the profit
after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
under the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC.

(vij  Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policies set out
in note 4(e) to the financial statements.

(viij  Convertible loans equity reserve

Convertible loans has an option component

that enable the holder to convert it into

ordinary shares of the Company, and the fair

value of such option at inception is credited

to convertible loans equity reserve. Upon

conversion, the balances will be transferred to

share capital and share premium account.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has two employee share option
schemes, namely Share Option Scheme B and
Share Option Scheme C.

On 2 March 2000, the Company adopted Share
Option Scheme B under which share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted under the terms and conditions stipulated
in Share Option Scheme B.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 26 April 2002, shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new Share Option
Scheme C and the termination of Share Option
Scheme B (save for the options already granted but
unexercised).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Under Share Option Scheme B, the Company might
have granted options to employees of the Group
(including directors of the Company) to subscribe
for ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time,
excluding for this purpose shares issued on the
exercise of options. The subscription price will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the ordinary shares, (ii) the average of the
closing price of the ordinary shares quoted on
the GEM on the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the closing
price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the
date of grant, which must be a business day.

Under Share Option Scheme C, the Company may
grant options to employees of the Group (including
directors of the Company) or at the absolute
discretion of the directors to invite any person who
has contributed to the Group’s business to take up
options to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time, excluding for this purpose shares
issued on the exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the ordinary shares, (ii) the
average of the closing price of the ordinary shares
quoted on the GEM on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (jii) the
closing price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM
on the date of grant, which must be a business day.

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

38.

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR

AR 19 S AS R (4%)
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38.

138

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The following table disclosed details of the
Company’s share options under Share Option
Scheme B and Share Option Scheme C and the
movements during the year ended 31 December
2010:

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

38.

AR 19 S AS R (4%)

TR EEMR R BB R MR
BICIE T A2 = B MR 2 515
URERBE-E—BF+= 7
=+ HIFEZ2E

Number of share options
BREXE
At1  Cancelled/ Exercised At31
Exercise January lapsed during during  December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2010 the year the year 2010
R-B-8% Eh R-E-3%
RtAH L e -A-H /5N ErfT® TZA=t-H
I Share Option Scheme B
| e 2B
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRERTHAR
19 June 2000 19 June 2001 to 18 June 2010 HK$0.44 3,750,000 (3,750,000) - -
ZEEEERBT A ZEE-FxATHhAZ 04487
“E-REAATAR
Other employees
HbfES
12 July 2000 12 July 2001 to 11 July 2010 HK$0.328 75,000 (75,000) - -
“EEEELATCA ZE3-FtATIHZ 0.328%7
ZE-SEtET-H
4 December 2000 4 December 2001 to 3 December 2010 HK$0.1355 150,000 - (150,000) -
“ZEEETCAMA “E2-E+°AMAZ 0.1355% 7
~2-RF1-A=A
17 January 2001 17 January 2002 to 16 January 2011 HK$0.2747 600,000 - (600,000) -
“EE-E-ftth “EECE-ATtAE 0.274THT
ZE--F-F15H
13 August 2001 13 August 2002 to 12 August 2011 HK$0.3868 225,000 (225,000) - -
“E2-ENAT=H ZZZ-E\A+=HE 0.386878 7
ZE2—-EN\A+ZH
Sub-Total NGt 4,800,000 (4,050,000) (750,000) -

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 38. AR ZASFIE(#)
Number of share options
ERESA
At1  Cancelled/ Exercised At 31
Exercise January lapsed during during  December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2010 the year the year 2010
R-B-B% R R-B-B%
RiEAH gL 1% —-A-H /%% ERfiE +=A=t-H
II. Share Option Scheme C
LRt 8iC
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRRATHAE
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to 12 August 2018 HK$0.06 47,000,000 - (47,000,000) -
“EEN\EN\BT=H ZEENENRTZHE 0.06%7
“E-N\ENBTZH
10 November 2009 10 November 2010 to 9 November 2019 HK$0.1026 15,000,000 - (7,500,0000 7,500,000
ZEENET-ATH “E-RET-ATHE 01026587
Z2-NET-ANA
Other employees
2
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to 13 May 2012 HK$0.1883 3,712,500 (375,000 (2,587,500) 750,000
ZZE-ERATOA ZEE-ERRTMAZ 0188387
“E-ZFRBT=H
14 August 2002 14 August 2003 to 13 August 2012 HK$0.1333 2,587,500 (112,500)  (2,475,000) -
“2E-E/\AT0A “EE-EN\RTOAZ 0133387
“E-ZEN\BT=H
26 March 2003 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2013 HK$0.1333 2,017,500 - (2,017,500) -
ZEE-E-ACTRH ZEEMEZATRAE 0.1333%7
ZE-=FZfACtER
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to 12 August 2018 HK$0.06 69,838,000 (4,212,500  (63,910,917) 1,714,583
“EEN\EN\BT=H ZEENENRTZHE 0.06%7
“E-\ENBTZH
10 November 2009 10 November 2010 to 9 November 2019 HK$0.1026 60,000,000 - (28,750,000 31,250,000
ZEENET-ATH “E-RET-ATHE 01026587
Z2-NET-ANA
Sub-total gt 200,155,500 (4,700,000 (154,240917) 41,214,583
Total share options ERELY 204,955,500 (8,750,000) (154,990,917) 41,214,583
The weighted average share price at the date of REBEZE-Z-ZF+=-A=+—H
exercise for share options exercised during the year LHFE BTEz2BERERTER
ended 31 December 2010 was HK$0.075. HA 2 InFE 3R E R0.0758 7T °
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38.

140

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The following table disclosed details of the
Company’s share options under Share Option
Scheme C and the movements during the year

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

38.

AR 19 S AS R (4%)

TREBBRASBUCET AL
BRAZHE  URERBE—%
——f+-A=t+—ALFEZS

ended 31 December 2011: g
Number of share options
ERERE
At1 Cancelled/ Exercised At 31
Exercise January  lapsed during during December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2011 the year the year 2011
RZ8--F £ R-F-—-%
it B & (& (i -A-H i/ KM Rk t=A=t-A
Share Option Scheme C
BB EC
Other persons
HAL
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to 13 May 2012 HK$0.1883 750,000 - - 750,000
ZZR2ERATIA “ER-ERATHAE 01883
“E-“ERRTER
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to 12 August 2018 HK$0.06 1,714,583 - - 1,714,583
“ZENENAT=ZA “ERNENATZRE 0.06%7
“E-N\ENATZH
10 November 2009 10 November 2010 to 9 November 2019 HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - - 38,750,000
“ZENET-ATH 2-EE{-AtHEE 010267
“E-nE+-ANA
Total o 41,214,583 - - 41214583
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of Country Praise Group

On 28 February 2011, the Group obtained
control of Country Praise Enterprises Limited
(“Country Praise”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Country
Praise Group”) by acquiring 100% of the
issued share capital of Country Praise for
consideration as set out below. Country
Praise Group was principally engaged in
electronic payment service and related trading
business during the year. Country Praise
Group was beneficially owned by Mr. Guan
Guisen. The acquisition is for the purpose of
deployment of the Group’s application of self-
developed 2D barcode technology to the fast
growing electronic payment service industry
in the PRC.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Country Praise Group acquired as

BE—_T——

39.

FH-A=t—HIFE

HReRTRERME

(a)

i Country Praise Group
RZZE-——FZA=Z+N
H » AR&EEZEBUYEECountry
Praise Enterprises Limited
([ Country Praise]) Z&BE 3
TR 7 > Ei{SCountry Praise
R EHHE 5 (58] Country
Praise Group |) 2 1 % #& o
Country Praise GroupAE R
FERSEFIARERME
BE 5 %7 o Country Praise
GroupHBEERLLEERE
B -WEBEBEZ2BENIIAKR
SEBHBITHEZ ZH#K
BEMEATPERELER
EFRIRIEE -

AU EE B 5 P W& Country
Praise Group Z 7 & Bl & 7=

at its date of acquisition is as follows: REEZAFENT :
HK$°000
FET

Net liabilities acquired: WiE B EFE

Property, plant and equipment ME -~ MEKRRE 3,907
Investments in jointly controlled entities REREHERZRE 1,102
Deferred tax asset BEERIEEE 3,827
Inventory rE 30
Trade receivables JE Uk BR X 4,147
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables FE{# ~ & R E LUK 54,374
Held-to-maturity financial assets SRR MK EE 5,928
Due from a jointly controlled entities FEUN — R H E i H E B FIE 390
Bank and cash balances RITR IS4 50,058
Trade payables FE{SBRRR (19,212)
Accruals and other payables FERE AR H RN E (128,031)
Non-controlling interests IR R (1,688)
(25,168)
Goodwill (Note 23) 2 (FftaE23) 1,043,256
1,018,088

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR
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BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. #ZLeRE&EREBRMT(E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

142

(a)

Acquisition of Country Praise Group

(@) UWiEECountry Praise Group

(Cont’d) (#)
HK$’000
FHT
Satisfied by: UTHARE :
Cash Be 80,000
Consideration shares REIRD 87,500
Contingent consideration payable (Note 33)  FE{I =k A1 (E (FiEE33) 850,588
1,018,088
HK$’000
FHET
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: EEEAE IS IEE
Cash consideration paid SNRERE (80,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEEIR S RIS ZEY) 50,058
(29,942)

The fair value of the 218,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company issued as part of
the consideration paid was determined on
the basis of the closing market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the acquisition
date.

The fair value of the contingent consideration
payable of HK$850,588,000 was valued by
an independent professional valuer, using a
probability model. Details of the contingent
consideration payable is set out in note 33 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Country Praise Group
(Cont’d)

Country Praise Group contributed
approximately HK$263,095,000 and
HK$54,525,000 to the Group’s turnover and
profit for the year respectively for the period
between the date of acquisition and the end
of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2011, total Group turnover from
continuing operations for the year would have
been HK$344,367,000, and profit for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$271,894,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of other subsidiaries
On 6 April 2011, the Group acquired 100% of
equity interest of Beijing Tiantongsaibo for a
cash consideration of HK$1,187,000.

On 1 July 2011, the Group acquired a further
30% equity interest of Hangzhou Qianbao,
a formerly 50% jointly controlled entity, for a
cash consideration of HK$2,432,000.

On 18 October 2011, the Group acquired
a further 45% equity interest of Kanghui, a
formerly 50% jointly controlled entity, for a
cash consideration of HK$2,442,000.

The acquisitions are for the purpose of
diversifying the Group’s business into
information system service sector and
strengthening the Group’s prepaid card
business in the PRC.

HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

39.

mERERBRME @)

(a)

(b)

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR

i Country Praise Group
(4&)
RUWBEBHZEREHKRS
@ - Country Praise Group
DRIMAER & EBERR
R EEf%9263,095,00078 T &
54,525,000/ JT ©

WMKHEBR=_F——F—A
—HERZR ' XEBEFER
FREREEB CBEXER
1% % 344,367,00058 T
271,894,000/8 7T - {EEZ &
FHEEH A RS > WA
HEBER=E——F—8
—HEZRZBERT » K&
B ERRE s EEERE
B N TBIEABRRERZ
FEA o

WiEH A E A T
RZZE——FMAKRAH K
S E LR £E1,187,0005%
TWBIERXREAZEH
IRASFERS o

R=ZZB——F+tH—H &
£ E LR £ (82,432,000
ToE— H W BB AT50% 2 H [E
R B MNERZ30% MR
i o

RZZE——%+HA+N\H >
AE B LR £ 18E2,442,000
BITE— S UNEEAI50% 2
B H B8R E 2 45% B A
e o

WEEREZ T AREB 2%
BEEERAGREE L2
2&%%432?,5{#%%
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

144

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the above entities acquired as

mERERBRME @)

(b) UxABELfHPIE R (&)
RUEE B8 Ll R iE B 88
ZABREERBEZRY

at respective dates of acquisitions are as BT :
follows:
Beijing Hangzhou
Tiantongsaibo Qianbao Kanghui Total
IRXEER E £ g At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Net assets acquired: hiEEERE
Property, plant and equipment #1% - BRE K& 582 33 1,084 1,699
Trade receivables FEUERR 2,609 437 - 3,046
[nventories RE 797 - - 797
Prepayments, depositsand ~ #ff3  BE&R
other receivables Bt e 121 25,685 956 26,762
Bank and cash balances RITRAEER 975 7,156 187 8,318
Trade and other payables  EERZREMEMT (474) (33,606) (3,141) (37,221)
Non-controlling interests FERER - 17 46 63
4,610 (278) (868) 3,464
Goodwill (Note 23) EEGEZR) — 8,719 5,752 14,471
Gain on bargain purchase ~ ZEWELE (3,423) - - (3,423)
1,187 8,441 4,884 14,512
Satisfied by: MTEIARER
Cash consideration SAEERE 1,187 2,432 2,442 6,061
Fair value of 50% equity 50% B 2
interests AFE - 6,009 2,442 8,451
1,187 8,441 4,884 14,512
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WEEEZES
arising on acquisitions: RN/ (R 58
Cash consideration paid EARERE (1,187) (2,432) (2,442) (6,061)
Cash and cash equivalents
acquired WERELREBLZEY 975 7,156 187 8,318
(212) 4,724 (2,255) 2,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
The Group recognised a gain on bargain
purchase of HK$3,423,000 in the business
combination of Beijing Tiantongsaibo. The
business combination results in a gain on
bargain purchase because of good business
relationship with the vendors.

The Group recognised a gain of HK$6,009,000
as a result of measuring at fair value its 50%
equity interests in Hangzhou Qianbao held
before the business combination. The Group
recognised a gain of HK$2,442,000 as a result
of measuring at fair value its 50% equity
interests in Kanghui held before the business
combination.

The goodwill arising on the acquisitions
of Hangzhou Qianbao and Kanghui is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of
the distribution of the Group’s products and
services in the underlying markets and the
anticipated future operating synergies from
the combination.

Beijing Tiantongsaibo, Hangzhou Qianbao
and Kanghui jointly contributed approximately
HK$2,879,000 and HK$964,000 to the
Group’s turnover and loss for the year
respectively for the period between their
respective dates of acquisitions and the end
of the reporting period.

BE-FT——F+-A=+—AILFE
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Wi H A BB A 7] (&)
AEBRLEAKXBEMREK
EHERRAZEWEKE
3,423,000/8 T - ¥ SR
HESZREEKBREE
EEWEWE o

AEBREBEHAIEGTZ
HRMMEREFE 250%
RARER 2 A FERRW S
6,009,000/8 T > NEBRE
BeptaEFtEERERE
BB 250% R A 2 DT
EERNZ2,442,00058 7T °

W BB AN SR 3R e BRI P E A
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MEEN KRB/ HHFER R
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

146

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

BE-_T——

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2011, total Group turnover from
continuing operations for the year would have
been HK$348,081,000, and profit for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$277,688,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Purchase of non-controlling interests

During the year, the Group acquired
49% equity interests in two 51% owned
subsidiaries (Shenyang Shanglian and
Shenzhen Shanglian) from the non-controlling
shareholders at total cash consideration of

FH_A=t—HIFE

mERERBRME @)

(b)

(c)

Wi H A BB A 7] (&)
WMKHBEBR=-_F——F—A
—HERZR ' XEBEFER
FEREEB CBEXER
#% % 348,081,00058 T * &
277,688,000/8 7T - {EE &
PHEEH A RS > WA
HEBER=E——F—8
—HEZRZBERT » K&
B ERREcEEERE
B N TBIEABRRERZ
FEA o

- PNE Y

TR AEEUARSNRE
4,233,000t O W E#EH
51% 2B AT (CBEEE K
YR ) 2 FEIE IR AR R UK EE
49% BR AR FEZE o W E AR

HK$4,233,000. The effect of the acquisition AEEAELERZEZEN
on the equity attributable to the owners of the T
Company is as follows:
HK$°000
FHET
Cash considerations HERE 4,233
Less: Share of net assets in the B FTEEE A R oL EEF
subsidiaries acquired (=l (1,383)
Loss on acquisition recognised directly — HiZREREIZWEER
in equity 2,850
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

On 5 September 2011 the Group
completed its disposal of 44.99% equity
interest in Wuhan SYSCAN Ltd. (“Wuhan
SYSCAN?”). Upon completion of the
disposal, the Group has approximately
11.79% equity interest in Wuhan
SYSCAN and hence classified as
available-for-sale financial assets of
the Group. The entire equity interest
in Wuhan SYSCAN was disposed of
on 31 December 2011 together with
other entities under SYSCAN Holdings
Limited (Note 39(d)(ii)).

On 5 September 2011, the Group
completed its disposal of 80% equity
interest in BERKERRDERESE
BPBRA7E (Hainan Shanglian Huitong
Commercial Investment Management
Co. Ltd. (“Hainan Shanglian”).

On 28 November 2011, the Group
completed its disposal of 70% equity
interest in Kanghui. Upon completion of
the disposal, the Group has 25% equity
interest in Kanghui which is hence
classified as an associate of the Group.

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

mERERBRME @)

(d) HEHREBAR

() R=-ZE——FhAR
H XEBEZHEE
REEWRBEIBEER
AARA(TREWR])
44.99% 2 PR A FESR ©
REEZTHE A&
BREEVRBESY
11.79% 2 R AN #E % -
Hit» HIBEKEE
AMEENBEEE -
REWRZZIB/A
¥ #= ¥ [&@ SYSCAN
Holdings Limited T 2
HMWEER=-Z——
F+=—HA=+—8H
€ o (FFEE39(d) (i) °

R-E——FNAH
H A&EEETREE
RSEEBEBRS K
REEEERLQA
(["SramE ])80% 2
IR ASFERS o

R-F——%+-4
—t+NH > KEERE
REEREE70% 2
BRAEZR - RHEHER
% NEBREE
B 25% 2 B} A R
#= @Al HA AR
%2—@%%@% ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. #ZLeRE&EREBRMT(E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (d HEWBLRGE)
i)  (Cont’d) 0y (&)
Net assets/(liabilities) at the date of REETKAHZE
completion of disposal were as follows: E/(BE)FENT
Wuhan Hainan
SYSCAN  Shanglian Kanghui Total
REYR ] 3 Gl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TER TER TAR

Property, plant and equipment  #1% « BER:xE 28,095 166 1,048 29,309
Prepaid land lease payments ~ #EftHitAEFHE 45,483 - - 45,483
Construction in progress HEIR 92,119 - - 92,119
Inventories BE 13,719 - = 13,719
Trade receivables FEURS 7,968 - - 7,968
Prepayments, deposits and BATE - RERHME

other receivables T 9,369 315 1,056 10,740
Bank and cash balances RITRBEEH 2,610 3,260 225 6,095
Trade payables AR (11,511) - (3,485) (14,996)
Accruals and other payables TR E (70 (69,512) (4,814) - (74,326)
Due to a non-controlling P —FEE A 7

shareholder of a subsidiary —BFERRRNE (24,864) - - (24,864)
Attributable goodwill ElhEE - 989 5,752 6,741
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of H&EE%E /(&%) %A 93,476 (84) 4,596 97,988
Release of foreign currency RRERE

translation reserve (4,896) 74 ©) (4,825)
Non-controlling interests FERER (39,549) 215 58 (39,276)
Waiver of amount due to the HEEAEREE

purchaser (36,000) - - (36,000)
Fair value of investment in RHBAAREREZD

subsidiary retained Y8 (11,803) - (916) (12,719)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEMRBATKE

subsidiaries (&58) 772 2,727 (319) 3,184
Total consideration - satisfied by ##E-NBEEH

cash 2,000 2,932 3,420 8,352
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising  HEE4EZBEREN/

on disposal: (i) 358
Cash consideration received 2UEERE 2,000 2,932 3,420 8,352
Cash and cash equivalents HERSRREZEY

disposed of (2,610) (3,260) (225) (6,095)

610) (328) 3,195 2257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES

(d)
(i)

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE
TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. #ZEeRE&REXRMTE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (d HEWBLRGE)
On 28 December 2011 the Group iy R=-ZE2E——F+=AH
completed its disposal of SYSCAN —t+tNA - KEERE
group companies which represent % H & SYSCAN £ &
SYSCAN Holdings Limited and all its NI Bl SYSCAN
subsidiaries and associates. Holdings Limited & &
2B A TR E
NI
Net liabilities at the date of disposal REERHZzEEF
were as follows: =R
HK$°000
FET

Property, plant and equipment Y - BMERRE 1,938
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEEMKEE 11,683
Investment in associates REBE QAT ZRE 24,363
Inventories A 7,977
Trade receivables FE U BR X 3,243
Prepayments, deposits and FEAFIE ~ e R HAE

other receivables e 54,445
Due from an associate FEUR — B EE A B K18 444
Bank and cash balances IRITRIBEER 4,275
Trade payables FE{SBRTR (2,318)
Accruals and other payables P R H e 7R0E (141,377)
Amount due to the Company FE{F AR A B FRIE (36,294)
Net liabilities disposed of HeEaETE (71,621)
Release of foreign currency translation 17 BREE 53 (% 1%

reserve (389)
Non-controlling interests IR 96
Disposal of sale loan HEHEER 36,294
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A RE 41,320
Total consideration - satisfied by cash BE- R SEN 5,700
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSRAFE -
Cash consideration received cWRERE 5,700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERBEESEEY (4,275)

1,425
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d)

150

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d)

(ii)

On 9 September 2010, the Group
entered into an agreement with ;&3|
MRS EEEAR2AT and an
individual to dispose its 94% equity
interest in a then subsidiary, ®IJlH
MERBREZREBRAT (formerly
known as FRIYIMmHBRHEBRERE
FR/A®\]), at a cash consideration of
approximately RMB188,000 (equivalent

BE-2——Ft-A=t+AILFE

(d)

mERERBRME @)

HEMBE AR #E)

(ii)

R-ZE-ZFFNAAI
B AEBEHEZXIH
WERESHNKREEESR
BRAGIR— BB A
TR HE UWRE
REXH AKRE188,000
7t (#8 & 14 216,000 8
) HEERE R —[E
B B 2 BRI ™ A E

to HK$216,000). RRHE B R A E (A7
FITHREBERS
BRAT) 294% M7
PR o
Net assets at the date of disposal were REEHHZEEF
as follows: =R
HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment V% - MERERE 320
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - ReEREMAE
receivables e 270
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS L6 20
Accruals and other payables FERT R HA S 7B (47)
Due to related companies FE{SRBAE D T FIE (3,059)
Net assets disposed of HeEEEFE (2,496)
Release of foreign currency translation 17 BREE 53 (% 1%
reserves 13,718
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HE—REMBARERE (11,006)
Total consideration - satisfied by cash BE- R SEN 216
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSRAFE -
Cash consideration received cWRERE 216
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERSRESZEEY (20)
196
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES

(d)
(iv)

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE
TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. #ZEeRE&REXRMTE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (d HEWBLRGE)
On 22 July 2010, the Group entered ivv R=-ZZ2—-—ZFFtA
into an agreement with 3l fBRAFN “t+=ZH  FAEEH
=EHMARAT and an individual to I T B B 1S B
dispose its 56.6% equity interest in a EMBERAARE— &
then subsidiary, RYIMBREE TIEE 18 Bl A 5T 32175 3
IBEPFR/AT], at a cash consideration of DB EREARKE?2
RMB2 (approximately HK$2). T (H28T) HEER
ERMBATRIT
BREEIRERES
PR A 5] 2 56.6% IR A<
Net assets at the date of disposal were REERBZ2EEF
as follows: BT :
HK$°000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment V% - MERERE 20
Inventories FE 12
Trade receivables FE U BR X 75
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAFIE ~ e R HAE
receivables e 28
Due from related companies FEUREEE N TR IE 2,232
Due from a non-controlling shareholder  fEUY — B IR R ERENIE 3,281
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEAR 28
Trade payables FE{SBRRR (35)
Accruals and other payables FERT R HA S 7B (58)
Net liabilities disposed of HESEZRE 5,583
Non-controlling interests FEFR IR AR RS (2,465)
Release of foreign currency translation 17 BREE 50 (% 1%
reserves (93)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEKHB A TEE (3,025)
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE-URSEN -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESREFE -
Cash consideration received 2YRERE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERIRESEEY (28)
(28)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. #elRe&RaRkMzT@E@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
(e) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (e) RIELEMBEAT
On 10 September 2010, ;FYIHHRESRIE E/\\\:ﬁ —EERA+AH
EEEEMPRAT transferred an intangible AT RSRHREEE
assets of RMB70,000,000 to a wholly owned ﬁ RAB@—B2EHWE
subsidiary, E‘Znﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁa}a (“GYB”) as AAETEEMNEERA
capital contribution. The transaction lead to FA([GYB]) BE AR
the reduction of the Group’s interest in GYB 70,000,000t 2 B & E 1E
from 100% to 30% and GYB became an FEE  c ZERFSHKEE
associate of the Group with carrying amount MR GYBZ &= H100% & £
of HK$29,906,000. The loss on deemed 30% @ HGYBR A K&
disposal of HK$3,939,000 in GYB was — & BR [ & A 29,906,000 78
recognised in consolidated profit of loss for TRZBERNT o AEERE
the year ended 31 December 2010. E-E-EF+ZA=+-—
BLtEEZHREERRME
RARRELHECGYBZEEA
3,939,000/8 T °
HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERRE 5,838
Inventories =& 141
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAFIE S BER
receivables =R AN E 23,627
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR S 480
Accruals and other payables FERT R H AR FRIE (11,947)
Income tax liabilities FiiskiasE (17)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 18,122
Release of reserves R 15,723
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary R{EHE—REHEBE A TEE (3,939)
30% share of net assets of associates RBEHE R D LEZE A T]130%
after deemed disposal ZEEFRE 29,906
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHE SR LT -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEREREELEEY (480)
(480)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(f)

Significant non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group had the following major non-cash
transactions:

(i)

As detailed in notes 33 and 39(a),
acquisition of Country Praise Group at
the consideration of HK$1,018,088,000
was partly satisfied by issuing
218,750,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company and
partly satisfied by contingently issuable
convertible loans with fair value of
HK$850,588,000.

As detailed in note 34, the Company
issued convertible loans of principal
amounts of HK$76,800,000 and
HK$76,800,000 on 22 July 2011 and
20 October 2011, respectively, to settle
the contingent consideration payable
after Country Praise Group fulfilling the
conditions in Scenario 1 and Scenario
2 as set out in note 33 to the financial
statements. Both convertible loans were
exercised and converted to 240,000,000
and 240,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Group had the following major non-cash
transactions:

(ii)

A parcel of land was injected by a
non-controlling shareholder as capital
contribution.

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2010: Nil).

EE—E——Ft+-A=1+—HILFE
39. HmERERERMTT®)

() EBEXFREXRF

RBEEZZE-——F+=A
=+—-BLEFE A&EHE
UTERFRERS :

() un f & 33 & 39(a) AT
# - Uy B8 Country
Praise Group Z X &
1,018,088,000 & 7T B
2 L3 17218,750,000

xZIK’_\ 7#510 0178
JT Z BRES

B 2 EE nNEEB
850,588, 000,%752‘52
E?ﬁ TUBRRERE

(i)  IBEES4FTHR - AA
AR =T ——F
tAZ+ZHRZE
——F+A=-+H%
17 R € A 76,800,000
B 7T & 76,800,000
BT IR ERU
€ 1+ Country Praise
Groupii & B 7 3R 2= T
HFIBFEER —RIE
M= 2R 2 B R
RARE - TRBRER
HEe Rl EITERA
# % 240,000,000 f% &
240,000,000 A% 2 2 &
FER001BLZEE

% o
—+ am&r AEBEHE
LUTEARFBRERS :
iy —BIIFERBRERU—
gt ihiEE o
40. HAEE

R=EZF——F+Z-A=+—H &K
SEEEXRREBRENEARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI AT
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41, BREPE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the REENRE B L RE 2 ERE
reporting period are as follows: T
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHERT
Contracted but not provided for BRI NEREE
Property, plant and equipment M > BERZRE - 4,578
Construction in progress EETRE - 25,572
- 30,150
42. LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. FHEEE

R=—Z——F+=-A=+—8 #
BRAURESEHNEN ZARRE
REERIELZENT ¢

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—2-—-F ZZZ-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FTHET
Within one year % 5,957 2,731
In the second to fifth year inclusive  S£=-FZFHF
(EFEEREMF) 2,936 6,098
8,893 8,829
Operating lease payments represent rental payable REMEREEASERES T

RERBERS 2EE - HHOERF
Y-=WFEHEE A UEE
E - BFStASAES -

by the Group for certain of its offices and factories.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
two year and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 43. BEALIR S
In addition to those related party transactions PREFTEMARMTIRTE 2 BEALR
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the ZRERI  REBRFRERE
financial statements, the Group had the following ALBTIREG REER ©

transactions and balances with its related parties
during the year.

(a) (a)
2011 2010
—2——-F CZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Card transaction levies received by kA& E < — EEIE
arelated company on behalf of ~ ATWEZ FRZEBE
the Group 1,099 -
Service charge paid to arelated  X{yF—EEEAT 2
company REE (1,058) -
Settlement funds paid to the REBALEE 2 —RRFE
contracted merchants by a RAAZNFITNEFEZ
related company on behalf of BEES
the Group (389,806) -
Due from a related company FEUN —RSEGE A T1EhIE -
included in deposits 2t AEE 247 -
Due to a related company included FEUx — EE§E N 515 IE
in trade payables B st A BRER (495) -
Due to a related company included FEUx — EE8E N B FIE
in other payables Bt AR MENFIE (890) -
A director, Mr. Guan, has significant influence —EEEANLHAEARAERX
over the related company. HEN o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011

43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(b)

Compensation to key management

BE-T—F+-A=+—AILFE

43.

BEALRS &)

(b) PMEEEERFFELHEE

Group
EE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Salaries and allowance e N ERE 6,248 7,295
Equity-settled share option RFE L E B IR ERE A
benefits - 591
Retirement benefit scheme EBRERET SRR
contributions 36 74
6,284 7,960

44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated
or reclassified as a result of presentation of
discontinued operation and in conformity with the
current year’s presentation.

45. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2012.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FHHHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out below. Please refer to the auditors’ reports of the
respective years of annual reports regarding the audit

opinions.

AEEBELEVBRFERE -EE &
BERIYBRREZ BZ(HHREC TR
ZREGIBHER  WNBERKES,E
HoBEINT - HEFARRFSH
BFRFEBFREZLBEIRES

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=T-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
-5 ZE2-TF ZEBNF ZFTTN\F CBTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER Tax THR TAx
Restated
EL]l
RESULT x5
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELCEXK
REVENUE Wiz 263,095 - 65,155 71,466 86,227
Cost of sales SHERAR (177,992) - (54,461) (58,706) (73,815)
Gross profit EA 85,103 - 10,694 12,760 12,412
Other income and gains Hitg A K W 3,136 434 10,331 4,738 58
Selling and distribution costs HER DA (8,469) - (7,499) (8,520) (3,826)
General and administrative expenses —-BRRTEEX (42,912) (12,720) (36,516) (24,338) (14,844)
Research and development expenses WEREREY - - (10,868) (10,153) (4,023)
Other operating expenses HitriEem% (43) (6,167) (762) (1,131) (789)
Impairment of interest in R—EEEARN
an associate ERRE - - (19,960) - -
Impairment loss on other receivables Hitt R 2 REE B - (51,029) - - -
Equity-settled share option expense RELEBRERS - (512) (8,364) - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB D7 s 2,727 - 502 - -
Gain on disposal of associates HERE AT 2 Iz - - - - -
Gain on deemed disposal BELENBLAH
of subsidiaries ) 6 - - 195 - -
Gain on revaluation of previous held B EANEREHE
interest in jointly controlled entity REsZEL Sl 8,451 - - - -
Gain on fair value change of contingent B SHAREBEATE
consideration payable g6 230,986 - - - -
Gain on bargain purchase on business ~ %£BAHEE
combination Wi 3,423 - - - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE (315) - - - -
Loss on disposal of HE—-MKE AT
an associate ZEE - - - (529) -

PREBFXNEEERAR @ —T——FFR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FHHHRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
e e L - S = s
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TER Tax TER TET
Restated
L]
Share of losses of: MEUT & A ZEE
Jointly controlled entity HEEFIER (1,117) - - - -
Associates NG (100) - (623) (1,864) -
Finance costs BE A (1,186) - (146) (12) (398)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BEAER/ (58 279,684 (69,994)  (63016) (20,049  (11,410)
Tax i (15,760) - - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEARFROM ~ RERBESLEK Y
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Enatl/ (B8) 263,924 (69,994) (63,016) (29,049) (11,410)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREEK
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries B {EHEHIB A Ak - - - - 98,442
Sales consideration forfeited BB HERE - - - 51,387 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from a BAIEEERZER
discontinued operation ikl (E18) 14,926 (80,029) - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREF/ (B8 278,850 (150,023) (63,016) 22,338 87,032
Attributable to: UTATEEES
Owners of the Company EAREEA 283,071 (148,983) (62,666) 22,338 87,032
Non-controlling interests FERER (4,221) (1,040) (350) - -
278850 (150,023  (63,016) 22,338 87,032
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND ¥E B8R
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERELR
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 1,408,008 296,250 172,917 183,192 208,594
TOTAL LIABILITIES maE (617,710) (202,401) (88,706) (49,952) (114,582)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EERIERS 147 (43,012) (2,061) - -
790,445 50,837 82,150 133,240 94,012
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